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*************************************************** 

 

The purpose of local government: 

 

(1) The purpose of local government is— 

(a) to enable democratic local decision-making and action by, and on behalf of, communities; and 

(b) to meet the current and future needs of communities for good-quality local infrastructure, local 
public services, and performance of regulatory functions in a way that is most cost-effective for 
households and businesses. 

(2) In this Act, good-quality, in relation to local infrastructure, local public services, and performance of 
regulatory functions, means infrastructure, services, and performance that are— 

(a) efficient; and 

(b) effective; and 

(c) appropriate to present and anticipated future circumstances. 

(Local Government Act 2002) 
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6 MAYOR'S REPORT 

6.1 MAYORAL ACTIVITIES REPORT 

File Reference: PAD 2/2 

Attachments: Nil  
  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the report be received. 

 

ACTIVITIES 

Meetings and Events 

Recent meetings and events of note that I have attended since the last Council meeting in October 

include: 

November 

 1 November – Spoke on Port FM Radio Show. 

 2 November – Pukaki Ward Councillors and I had a relationship meeting with the South 
Canterbury District Health Board.  Attended Civil Defence briefing for myself and Planning 
Committee Chair. Attended Fairlie Community Board workshop and meeting in late 
afternoon. 

 3 November – Attended Mackenzie Country Trust meeting in Twizel. 

 6 November – The Community Facilities Manager, Chief Executive and I travelled to 
Omarama for an Alps 2 Ocean Joint Committee meeting. This was followed by a bike ride 
from Otematata to Sailors Cutting and then a Summit meeting for Alps 2 Ocean of all 
stakeholders. 

 7 November – Attended a meeting between Mackenzie District Council, Pukaki Airport 
Committee and Meridian Energy.  In evening attended a session with staff and elected 
members with Federated Farmers about the District Plan Review. 

 9 November – Attended Extraordinary Finance Committee meeting and submission 
hearing.   

 10 November – Met with a Twizel business person. Had farewell lunch for outgoing Chief 
Executive, Wayne Barnett. 

 11 November – Attended Armistice Day and Passchendaele commemorations at Albury and 
then attended Mary Hobbs’ book launch at Mt Cook. 

 15 November – The Chief Executive and I met with a property developer.  Attended meeting 
with Chorus in Fairlie.  Met with Timaru business person. 

 16/17 November – The Chief Executive and I attended the Rural Provincial meeting in 
Wellington.  We also met with a Tourist Bus operation company.  Following that, we met 
with a Ministry for the Environment representative. 

 20 November – Attended the Alpine Energy Shareholders meeting in Timaru. 

 21 November – The Chief Executive and I met with two separate Pukaki Ward ratepayers. 
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 23 November – Committee Meeting day. 

 24 November – Attended Mini Mayoral Forum in Waimate with other South Canterbury 
and North Otago Mayors.  Attended farewell function for two retiring Mackenzie 
Kindergarten teachers. 

 28 November – Met with representative from Tuia Charitable Trust.  Attended LTP 
workshop following this. 

 29 November – Attended a Council webinar and then visited the Science Roadshow being 
held at Mackenzie College.  The Chief Executive and I then met with a property developer. 

 30 November – Attended Mayoral Forum working dinner in Christchurch with the Chief 
Executive. 

 

December 

 1 December – Attended Mayoral Forum meeting in Christchurch with Chief Executive, and 
Civil Defence Emergency Management Group Joint Committee and Canterbury Regional 
Transport Committee Meeting. 

 4 December – Attended Twizel Community Board meeting. 

 5 December – Attended Tekapo Property Group meeting, a meeting at the Church of the 
Good Shepherd and Department of Conservation Wilding Pine meeting. 

 6 December – Spoke on Port FM radio show.  Had an onsite meeting with the Pukaki Airport 
Committee and then met with Timaru business people in afternoon. 

 7 December – Met with Fairlie Bowling Club and Mackenzie Rugby Club representatives and 
then attended Fairlie Community Board meeting. 

 12 December – Attended Council meeting in Twizel and then the Mackenzie College End of 
Year Award Ceremony. 
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6.2 REPORT ON RURAL PROVINCIAL MEETING 16-17 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 2/2 

Author: Catherine Johnson, Executive Assistant  

Authoriser: Graham Smith, Cr  

Attachments: Nil 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the information be noted. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Chief Executive and myself travelled to Wellington for the Rural Provincial Meeting held on 16 
and 17 November 2017.  The following is a summary of the discussions held, for your information. 

 
Mayors Meeting (held prior to the Rural Provincial Meeting commencing) 
 
Earthquake legislation on priority buildings is a problem as the action time has been reduced from 
15 years to 7 years bringing in affordability issues. 
 
The new Minister of Local Government, Nania Mahuta - Called for local government to have a 
fresh collaborative approach with no talking in silos.  Inequality and poverty to be addressed as 
well as climate change, growth of infrastructure and the 3 Waters being top of the list.  A funding 
and finance policy is to be reviewed.  Would like local government to encourage civic participation.  
The Minister would like to meet Mayors and CEOs to test ideas to approach 3 Waters in the next 
three years.  This report is expected to be out on 8th December.  The Minister outlined significant 
issues such as regional development conversations, and also tourism relative effects.  She 
envisages bringing the four wellbeings back into local government.  It is all about finding workable 
splits, and mentioned how the government will distribute authority around regions while looking 
out for our indigenous people and dealing with housing issues. 
 
Malcolm Alexander CEO of Local Government New Zealand - True MMP, ie the largest party does 
not govern.  The new Government is focused on a 100 day plan including housing families, 
minimum wage, zero carbon emissions by 2050, increase walk cycling, clean water, and New 
Zealand’s commitment to Paris accord is huge. 
 
Funding needed 18% rate rise Hamilton, climate change and Councils’ responsibility, risk people 
need to know information need to be on LIMs.  Do nothing and may be liable, sea level rises, 
extreme events, flood control and infrastructure issues. 
 
Fire Emergency - Takeover of rural fire has gone well, training now to cope with any response. 
Wanting a close working relationship with local government as they develop capabilities for 
emergencies. 
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Kapiti Mayor - Stormwater is a sleeping giant as 40km open stormwater drains.  A breach is costly 
with up to $600 million to deal with the issue.  Who pays? One degree temperature rise equates 
to 8% more rain.  Need to avoid flood hazard areas.  People have greater expectations. 
 
Tracy Collins Tararua - Hungry for broad band, Council helped make it happen. Get land 
permission and consenting issues in order.  Collate data to a central point. 
 
Gaming Trusts - A trustee Gaming Trusts inject $300 million into communities that rely on funding.  
Loss of gaming machines and move against gambling having a negative affect with $60 million 
been lost to communities.  Reduced gaming machines has not decreased gambling problems.  
 
Feedback from the LGNZ Road Shows - Issues same at each Council visited, with the size of the 
Council not mattering. The following issues have been raised throughout the country: 

1. Rate funding models are not working 
2. Provincial NZ is growing 
3. Earthquake resilient measures are too tough 
4. Housing rental markets are under extreme pressure 
5. Climate change needs a plan 
6. NZTA restructure has not worked, a new GPS needs to happen as soon as possible 

 
Rural NZ College of Health Body for Practitioners – A representative spoke to us on the Rural GP 
situation and a serious shortage of doctors.  57% doctors over the age of 50 with younger doctors 
not wanting to work in rural NZ leading to a 30% deficit in next 5 years.  Compliance costs, ageing 
patients, doctor ratios of 2800 patients per doctor is too much, and there is no back up for GPs. 
Important need for primary care where people want to talk to a doctor and not an ipad. 
 
Education and talking to MP is what we can do.  
 
Two Mayors gave feedback that the CouncilMARK programme was valuable in setting direction, 
investing in Council ourselves, looking at ourselves, better ways of managing our assets.  
 
Minister Housing Phil Twyford Minister Housing and Transport - Housing is top of priority list, 
homelessness has to be addressed, Government are wanting to build 100,000 affordable homes a 
year, no more state houses to be sold.  Intending on raising standards of rental properties and 
reviewing tenancy rules. 
 
Make some rational economic decisions around best mix modes coastal shipping.  Need to double 
investment on roads, and a new funding model to be looked for. 

CONCLUSION 

Not applicable. 

 

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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7 PUBLIC EXCLUDED REPORTS 
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8 REPORTS 

8.1 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ACTIVITIES REPORT 

File Reference: PAD 2/3 

Attachments: 1. Tourism Summit Aotearoa 14 November 2017 Programme ⇩   
  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the report be received. 

 

ACTIVITIES 

It gives me great pleasure to present my first report to Council as your new Chief Executive. It has 

been an extremely busy and interesting period since commencing in this role on Monday 13 

November 2017, as the organisation continues to deal with various Operational matters, as well as 

the relevant stages of many large projects such as the auditing of the Annual Report 2016/17, the 

preparation of Council’s Long Term Plan 2018-28, the first stage of the District Plan review and a 

number of significant infrastructure projects. I wish to acknowledge staff’s efforts throughout the 

calendar year, including the planning for and preparation of all the relevant strategic documents 

over and above a heavy operational workload, as well as Council’s valued direction and contribution 

throughout the various processes, it is much appreciated.   

 

We are currently recruiting for a Group Manager – Regulations and while this process is taking place, 

I am covering both the Chief Executive and Manager – Planning and Regulations roles with both the 

Planning Manager and Building Control Manager stepping up and managing some of the activities 

and responsibilities, which I am grateful for.  I hope to be in a position to make an announcement 

regarding an appointment of the Group Manager – Regulations at the Council meeting. 

 

As you are aware our Council has been accepted into the LGNZ CouncilMARKTM Excellence 

Programme, with the first visit by LGNZ representatives scheduled for 14 December 2017.  Being 

part of this programme will involve a lot of work, but the results will be very rewarding and beneficial 

and will enhance effectiveness, efficiencies as well as public value.  As part of the change agenda, I 

have already instigated one on one meetings with all employees between now and the Christmas 

break, in order to get a quick snapshot overview of the organisation from their perspective.  Elected 

members are to be interviewed by me early in 2018 and will include Councillors and Community 

Board members. I am also meeting with various stakeholders in this regard with the aim to establish 

strong working relationships. 

 

Mayor Graham Smith and I have recently attended the Rural Provincial two day meeting in 

Wellington, as well as the Canterbury Mayoral Forum in Christchurch, which was most beneficial to 

attend as it provided a national overview of matters relevant to and affecting local government.   

 

 

CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9616_1.PDF
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On 14 November I attended the Tourism Summit Aotearoa presented by the Tourism Industry 

Association in Wellington.  During this summit the industry offered a pledge to sustainability, as it 

seeks to rejuvenate itself following a period of lower than expected growth – ie 4% as opposed to 

7% worldwide.  Chris Roberts, CEO of Tourism Industry Aotearoa provided insights in terms of the 

industry’s performance and gave it a “B – passing with merit” status, highlighting the need to do 

something different.  The reason for rating the industry’s performance a “B” was because 

international arrivals are up a little, spending is 10% more, connectivity with the regions is up a little, 

visitor experience is the same, and there has been no progress with productivity.  There has also 

been no progress in broadening the shoulder season. 

 

The Minister of Tourism, the Honourable Kelvin Davis presented at the Summit and highlighted the 

following priorities for New Zealand tourism: 

 Public toilets; 

 Carparks; 

 Infrastructure; 

 Training;  

 Conservation; and 

 Local Government funding models 

The importance of narrative (power of storytelling), the need for authenticity and value based 
behaviour, creating individual and collective value, the value of ‘a quality personal experience in a 
local setting’ to tourists, regional dispersion and aligning regional and Maori interest was a common 
thread throughout the day, as many examples were presented to demonstrate commitment to the 
principles of sustainability.  In the face of disruptive technology, the importance of not losing the 
human connection/dimension was also emphasised. 

CORPORATE WORK ITEMS 

Staff Movements 

There have been no new staff starting or departing in this period. 

Water Supplies 

Since the last Council meeting on 31 October 2017, there has been one failed water sample, and 

this was on the Allandale Water Supply on 30 November 2017.  It is believed that this was due to 

the high turbidity from recent thunderstorms in this location. A precautionary boil water notice was 

placed on the Allandale Water Supply.   

 

Civil Defence 

There have been no Civil Defence incidents since the last Council meeting. 

 

Health and Safety 

There has been one incident of a fall at the Fairlie office building reported since the last Council 

meeting. The incident was investigated and it was determined that no mitigation was required.  The 
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staff member was not injured.  One minor vehicle accident was also reported.  This is being 

investigated. 

 

Meetings and Events 

Recent meetings and events of note that I have attended since the last Council meeting include: 

November 

 

 13 November – Held staff meeting at 8.30am. 

 14 November – Travelled to Wellington for a TIA Tourism Summit. 

 15 November – The Mayor and I met with a property developer.  

 16/17 November – The Mayor and I attended the Rural Provincial Meeting in Wellington.  
We also met with Judy Chen, the new CEO of the Tourism Export Council of New Zealand 
followed by a meeting with Ministry for the Environment representatives. 

 21 November – The Mayor and I met with two separate Pukaki Ward ratepayers.  In 
afternoon had a meeting with Raewyn Bell, of South Canterbury Chamber of Commerce. 

 22 November – Had a meeting with a Tekapo resident, and then Tekapo property owner in 
afternoon. 

 23 November – Committee meeting day. 

 24 November – Involved in recruitment process for Group Manager – Regulations. 

 28 November – Involved in Council workshop. 

 29 November – The Mayor and I met with a property developer.  Met with two Tekapo 
Community Board members.  Had a relationship meeting with Timaru District Council. 

 30 November – Met with John Mackay of Audit New Zealand in Christchurch and then 
Council’s solicitors.  Attended Mayoral Forum working dinner. 

 

December 

 

 1 December – Attended Mayoral Forum, Civil Defence Emergency Management Group Joint 
Committee meeting, and Canterbury Regional Transport Committee. 

 4 December – Attended Twizel Community Board meeting. 

 5 December – Attended Tekapo Property Group meeting and then a meeting at the Church 
of the Good Shepherd. 

 6 December – Had an onsite meeting with the Pukaki Airport Committee. Met with Tekapo 
and Twizel businesses. 

 7 December – Held monthly staff meeting.  Met with Fairlie Bowling Club and Mackenzie 
Rugby Club representatives and then attended Fairlie Community Board meeting. 

 8 December – Travelled to Christchurch for Regional Forum. 

 12 December – Council meeting. 

  



Ordinary Council Meeting Agenda 12 December 2017 

Item 8.1 Page 14 

Resource Consents 

 

 

 

Building Consents 

 

 

Complaints/Service Requests for November 2017 

From 1 November to 30 November, 49 service requests were received from residents throughout 
the District.  Of these, 43 have been completed and closed off, and the remaining 6 have been 
initially inspected and the essential issues dealt with.  Some finishing work is needed to achieve a 
final sign off before they are closed.  

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.2 ADOPTION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT 

File Reference: FIN 

Author: Tania Hoefsloot, Financial Accountant  

Authoriser: Paul Morris, Chief Financial Officer  

Attachments: 1. Annual Report Summary 2017 ⇩  
2. Annual Report (under separate cover) ⇨   

  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To adopt the audited Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2017. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That Council approves the signing of the audited Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 
2017. 

3. That Council adopts the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2017. 

4. That Council approves the signing of the Annual Report Summary for 2017. 

5. That Council adopt the Annual Report Summary for 2017.  

 

BACKGROUND 

Sections 98 and 99 of the Local Government Act 2002 require Council to prepare its Annual Report 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 in accordance with the information required by Part 3 of Schedule 

10 of the same Act. 

 

The Annual Report presents Council’s actual (financial and non-financial) performance measured 

against planned performance as set out in the Long-term plan and the annual plan for the year 

ended 30 June 2017, and to promote Council’s accountability to the community for the decisions 

made throughout the year by the local authority. 

 

Council is required to adopt its Annual Report by 31 October 2017. This statutory deadline has been 

breached as the adoption of the annual report has been delayed.  Council asked for Audit NZ’s 

reasons to be tabled (see Attachment 2). 

 

This year’s audit focused heavily on the revaluations of Council infrastructure including vested 

assets. Council is expecting to receive an unqualified audit report that the statements comply with 

generally accepted accounting practice (GAAP), relevant legislation and fairly reflects reported 

performance. Once the Annual Report and the Summary Annual Report are adopted and signed 

these documents are made available to the public.  

 

../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=4
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9624_1.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9624_2.PDF
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The unqualified opinion has been reliant on the resolution of the issue raised by audit regarding 

vested asset recognition. Council has agreed to change the timing of vested assets and recognise a 

prior period adjustment to appease audit and to achieve this opinion. 

POLICY STATUS 

N/A 

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

This decision is not considered to be significant in terms of Council’s Significance and Engagement 
Policy. 

OPTIONS 

Council does not have an option of not adopting its Annual Report as this would be in breach of the 

legislation. 

The Annual Report focuses on both financial and non-financial performance for the year. The 

following is a table of this year’s performance measure results compared to last year’s results.  

 

 
 

For the 2016/17 year emphasis was placed on improving the supporting documentation for the non 

financial performance information to ensure that all could be measured.  This has seen all of the 

non financial performance information in 2016/17. For this reason and a small increase in ratepayer 

satisfaction has resulted in a slight improvement of 3% in the achieved measures compared to last 

year.  

 

The financials reflect the increased activity in the district with the net surplus before valuation gains 

of $4.237 million against a budgeted surplus of $3.064. The biggest drivers of the increased surplus 

are increased revenues in Subsidies and Grants $2.349 million, Real Estate Sales $2.825 million and 

Other Revenue ($4.004 million) all of which reflect increased development activity. In addition, 

increased revenue of $13.831 million was recorded as gains from the revaluation of Council’s 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

2016

2017

Performance Measure Results

% Achieved % Not Achieved
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infrastructure assets as at 1st July 2016 along with land and buildings as at 30 June 2017. The 

revaluation is a gain on paper only arising from higher market prices. Any movements in market 

prices are not budgeted due to the inherent difficulties in forecasting market conditions and 

changes in technology which affect fair value. 

 

Real Estate Sales $2.825 million were achieved this year from two lake front sections in Lake Tekapo. 

The cost of the land pertaining to these sales was $1,339,000 showing in the expenditure section. 

 

Other Revenue ($4.004 million) is largely due to: 

• the gain realised on 5 residential sections sold in Twizel, 

• carbon credits worth $275,000 issued to Council during the year, and 

• the forestry revaluation gain of $527,000. 

Offset against these gains is the loss on disposal value of $221,000 of the fire response assets.  

 

These increases in revenue were partially offset by lower than budgeted Vested Assets ($2.334 

million, which was $811,000 less than the estimated budget of $3,145,000. The Lake Tekapo 

footbridge was vested to Council during the year for $2,333,540. Vested asset revenue is largely 

dependent on the infrastructural assets that are expected to be vested in Council from developers. 

They are a non cash item and subject to the number of subdivisions that are completed. 

Infrastructural assets vested to Council this year from Tekapo developers for $1,545,000, including 

water assets $261,000, sewer assets $263,000, stormwater assets $288,000 and roading assets 

$733,000 has been restated. This change in the timing of recognition of vested assets has meant 

that no revenue has been recognised in this financial year for these infrastructural vested assets and 

has reallocated the revenue into prior financial years.  

 

Operating expenditure was over budget by $2.751 million most of which is attributable to 

unbudgeted real estate cost of sales of $1.339 million and higher than expected depreciation costs 

$0.954 million. 

 

Cash investment at the end of the year stands at $6.844 million with no external debt. This is a 

healthy position for Council to be in, as the cash received from real estate sales will be invested with 

the interest earned on investments are used to offset rates. 

 

Council’s infrastructure assets, land and buildings are revalued on a tri-annual basis and therefore 

took place on 1 July 2016. The revaluation of the infrastructure assets resulted in a net overall 

increase in value by 11% of the following assets as detailed in the following table: 

 
 

    Land 9%

    Water (0)

    Wastewater schemes12%

    Stormwater schemes 7%

    Roading 19%

    Buildings 24%

    Total 11%
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A second revaluation of land was conducted on 30 June 2017 as the increase in the weighted 

average movement in property values of the District between 1 July 2016 and 30 June 2017 was 

considered material to the value of the asset base. The assets will be revalued as normal next year. 

 

In summary the operating surplus was stronger than anticipated however much of the positive 

surplus was either non cash due to the revaluations and vesting of assets or cash received from real 

estate sales. The cash will generate interest that will be used to offset general rates. 

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

N/A 

Financial 

There are no direct financial implications beyond existing budgets for printing and publishing.  

Other 

Local Government Act 2002 Purpose Provisions 

The Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2017 has been prepared under section 98 and 

Schedule 10 Part 3 of the Local Government Act 2002, which requires a local authority preparing an 

annual report pursuant to this section to adopt its audited annual report by 31 October of that year. 

 

Council Policies / Plans / Procedures 

The Annual Report provides a comparison between planned financial and non-financial 

performance and the actual performance of Council for the year ended 30 June 2017.  

 

Implementation Plan 

An implementation plan is not required for this document. 

 

Consultation and Engagement 

Consultation is not required for this document. 

 

Communication 

The Annual Report and Summary Annual Report are required to be made publicly available within 

one month of the report being adopted by Council. A media release will also be issued.  
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CONCLUSION 

That the Annual Report and Annual Report Summary for the year ended 30 June 2017 be adopted. 

 

 
 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.3 DELEGATION TO ISSUE INFRINGMENTS UNDER SECTION 363 OF THE BUILDING ACT 2004 

File Reference: PAD 10/4 

Author: Grant Hyde, Building Control Manager  

Authoriser: Suzette van Aswegen, Chief Executive Officer  

Attachments: 1. Section 363 ⇩   
  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to update the delegations register to include section 363 of the Building 
Act 2004.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That Council approve an update the delegations register to include the following: 

Power to be Delegated Statutory Reference To whom delegated Sub delegation 
allowed  

Power to issue 
infringement notices 

Building Act 2004 

Section 363  

CEO, Building Control 
Manager, Group 
Manager Regulations 

No 

   

 

BACKGROUND 

The purpose of the report is to update the delegations register to include reference to section 363 
of the Building Act 2004 (the Act), and to provide for managers to issue infringement notices under 
that section and in accordance with Schedule 1 of the Building (Infringement Offences, Fees and 
Forms) Regulations 2007.  This relates to the ability to take infringement action against property 
owners that allow the public to use buildings prior to receiving Code Compliance Certificate (CCC) 
or failing to apply for a Certificate of Public Use (CPU) and neglecting to extend an expired CPU 
within a specified date.  

See attached section 363 from the Act.  Public buildings must not be used without either a CPU or 
CCC.  

POLICY STATUS 

N/A 

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

The decision is not considered significant under the Council’s significance and engagement policy.  

OPTIONS 

Option 1:  For the Council to approve the amendment to the Delegations Manual to include this 
delegation to staff. 

Option 2:  for Council to decline the delegation. 
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Option 2 would require any decision to issue an infringement notice to come to a meeting of full 
Council.  Council retains the ability to consider any decisions relating to prosecution, but its usual 
practice is to delegate the issuing of infringement notices to certain staff, for reasons of efficiency.  

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

Refer to attached section 363.  

Financial 

N/A 

Other 

N/A 

CONCLUSION 

It is important that the Council is able to efficiently implement and enforce the provisions of 
legislation in fulfilling its statutory responsibilities.  This includes the ability to enforce section 363 
of the Act.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.4 RM170128 - PLACEMENT OF A GARAGE WITHIN BOUNDARY SETBACKS - 19 FRASER 
CRESENT, TWIZEL 

File Reference: RM170128 

Author: Suzanne Blyth, Resource Management Planner  

Authoriser: Karina Morrow, Planning Manager  

Attachments: 1. RM170128 - Site Location Plan ⇩  
2. RM170128 - Aerial Photograph ⇩  
3. RM170128 - Site Plan ⇩  
4. RM170128 - Hip Roof Plan and Elevations ⇩   

  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For the Council to consider a request for affected person approval (under Section 95E of the 
Resource Management Act 1991) concerning a resource consent application from K. A. Marshall for 
a proposed garage at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That affected person approval (under Section 95E of the Resource Management Act 1991) 
be provided with regard to resource consent application RM170128 to erect a garage with 
reduced boundary setbacks at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel. 

 

BACKGROUND 

K. A. Marshall has applied for a resource consent to erect a garage with a reduced boundary setback, 
within the Residential 1 Zone at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel. The proposed garage location and design 
is shown in the Attachments 1, 2 and 3. 

The proposed garage is 9.5 metres wide and 10.999 metres long, a total of 104 metres square 
metres. The garage has a pitched roof with gables in the north and south elevations, the height of 
the walls is 2.65 metres and the highest point of the roof is 3.848 metres, there are two sky lights 
along the western and eastern elevations respectively. 

The structure will be clad in iron and coloured with light green walls and a dark green roof. 

The proposed location of the garage is adjacent to a park owned and managed by the Mackenzie 
District Council (See Attachment 2 - Aerial Photograph). The park runs between Cass Crescent and 
Fraser Crescent, Twizel.  

The applicant has proposed a setback of 0.2 metres to the council owned park. 

The proposal as described above and shown in the attached plans, requires resource consent for 
the following matters: 

 Boundary Setback: the proposed building will encroach the two metre boundary setback on 
the North West boundary of the site which adjoins a public walkway administered by 
Mackenzie District Council. The proposed setback is 0.2 metres (20 centimetres). 
 

CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9569_1.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9569_2.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9569_3.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9569_4.PDF


Ordinary Council Meeting Agenda 12 December 2017 

Item 8.4 Page 42 

Given the above infringements, Council officers have concluded that there will be minor adverse 
effects on the adjoining land to the north west of the subject site, being a Mackenzie District Council 
park. As such, Council is considered to be an ‘affected person’ under Section 95E of the Resource 
Management Act 1991. 
 
The Applicant, KA Marshall, has requested that Council provide written approval for the proposal. If 
Council provides written approval, any effects on them will be disregarded. If Council does not 
provide written approval, the application will need to proceed on a limited notified basis. 
 
As outlined in the ‘Roles and Delegations to Community Boards’ dated 31 October 2016, Community 
Boards have delegation to recommend to Council whether or not it should provide or withhold 
affected person approval in the above situation. As such, at its meeting of 30 October 2017 the 
Twizel Community Board was asked to consider the application and make a recommendation to 
Council to either provide or withhold written approval as an affected person. The Twizel Community 
Board subsequently resolved the following: 
 
“2. That the Twizel Community Board recommend to Council that affected person approval be 

provided with regard to resource consent application RM170128 to erect a garage with 
reduced boundary setbacks at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel.”  

Council is now asked to consider the application, and the recommendation from the Twizel 
Community Board, and either provide or withhold affected persons approval under Section 95E of 
the Resource Management Act 1991. 

POLICY STATUS 

Not applicable.  

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

This does not trigger Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy. 

OPTIONS 

Option 1: Council provides affected person approval (Under Section 95E of the Resource 
Management Act 1991) to consent application RM170128, to erect a garage with a reduced 
boundary setback, at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel. 

Option 2: Council does not provide affected person approval (Under Section 95E of the Resource 
Management Act 1991) to resource consent application RM170128, to erect a garage with a reduced 
boundary setback, at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel. 

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

Section 95E of the Resource Management Act 1991 (the Act) states that a person(s) is ‘affected’ if 
the adverse effects of an activity on them are ‘minor’ or ‘more than minor’ (but not ‘less than 
minor’). In deciding this, section 95E(2) of the Act requires a consent authority to disregard any 
effects on persons who have provided written approval. 

Financial 

There are no financial considerations pertaining to this application. 
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Other 

No other matters warrant consideration. 

CONCLUSION 

Council is asked to either provide or withhold written approval under Section 95E of the Resource 
Management Act 1991 for the proposed garage at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel. 

 

 

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHEIF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.5 OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD AND ABUSE POLICY 

File Reference: FIN 10/4 

Author: Katherine Hill, Senior Corporate Planner  

Authoriser: Paul Morris, Chief Financial Officer  

Attachments: 1. Proposed Occupational Fraud and Abuse Policy ⇩   
  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For Council to adopt the proposed Occupational Fraud and Abuse Policy. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That the Council adopt the proposed Occupational Fraud and Abuse Policy. 

 

BACKGROUND 

Council is committed to maintaining the highest professional and ethical standards. To aid this, 
Council has developed an Occupational Fraud and Abuse Policy to facilitate the development of 
controls that will aid in the detection and prevention of fraud against Council. The existing policy 
was adopted in 2011. Since its adoption, Council has sought a review of the policy by Deloitte.  

Whilst the existing policy is functional, the review identified areas where clarification would improve 
its effectiveness. Deloitte’s review was provided to the Audit and Risk Committee 22 August 2017 
with a proposed policy which addresses the findings of Deloitte.  

The Committee recommended that Council adopt the proposed Occupational Fraud and Abuse 
Policy, with the following amendments to be made: 

a) In paragraph one of the ‘Background’ section of the Policy, amend the first sentence to 
read “The Mackenzie District Council (“The Council”) is committed to maintaining the 
highest professional and ethical standards.” 

b) In paragraph one of the ‘Background’ section of the Fraud Response Plan, amend the 
first sentence to read “The Mackenzie District Council (“The Council”) is committed to 
maintaining the highest professional and ethical standards.” 

c) In the last paragraph of the ‘Further Action’ section of the Fraud Response Plan, delete 
the third bullet point referring to the Marketing and Communications Team. 

d) In paragraph one of the ‘Employee Interview Requirements’ section of the Fraud 
Response Plan, replace the first brackets with the title ‘Manager responsible for 
Human Resources’ and replace the second brackets with the title ‘Chief Financial 
Officer’, in the first bullet point. 

e) In paragraph two of the ‘Involvement of Law Enforcement Agencies’ section of the 
Fraud Response Plan, replace the brackets with the title ‘Chief Financial Officer’ . 

f) In paragraph three of the ‘Involvement of Law Enforcement Agencies’ section of the 
Fraud Response Plan, replace the brackets with the title ‘Chief Financial Officer’. 

The attached proposed Occupational Fraud and Abuse Policy has been amended to address the 
above matters.  

CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9605_1.PDF
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POLICY STATUS 

Council has an existing Occupational Fraud and Abuse Policy which will remain operative until final 
decisions have been made on the review and a revised policy has been adopted.  

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

The decision is not considered to be significant. 

OPTIONS 

The options available to Council are to either: 

a) Adopt the proposed Occupational Fraud and Abuse Policy, as attached to this report; or 

b) Instruct staff to make amendments to the Occupational Fraud and Abuse Policy and adopt 
the Policy subject to those specified changes.  

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

N/A 

Financial 

N/A 

Other 

N/A 

CONCLUSION 

In light of the review of Council’s existing Occupation Fraud and Abuse Policy, Council is asked to 
considered adopting a revised Policy as attached which addresses the matters raised in the review 
and recommendations from the Audit and Risk Committee.  

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.6 AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER 

File Reference: PAD 10/3/2 2018-28 

Author: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Authoriser: Suzette van Aswegen, Chief Executive Officer  

Attachments: 1. Audit Engagement Letter ⇩   
  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of the report is to seek that Council authorise the Mayor to sign the Audit Engagement 
Letter for the audit of the Consultation Document and Long Term Plan 2018-28. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That the Council authorise the Mayor to sign the Audit Engagement Letter for the audit of 
the Consultation Document and Long Term Plan 2018-28 dated 27 November 2017. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Council is presently working on developing its Long Term Plan (LTP) for 2018-28.  Work is 
progressing on producing all the supporting information to the draft Plan and the consultation 
document.   

Sections 93C and 94 of the Local Government Act 2002 require that both the consultation document 
and the LTP contain reports from the Auditor General on whether both documents give effect to 
their respective statutory purposes, and on the quality of the information and assumptions 
underlying the information in the documents.   

The Auditor-General has appointed Audit NZ to carry out the audit of our consultation document 
and LTP.  Staff have been liaising with John Mackey of Audit NZ regarding the audit process.  The 
attached letter of engagement reflects those discussions.  The letter sets out the terms and costs 
associated with the audit, and contains a timeline for delivery of key documents and information.    

POLICY STATUS 

N/a. 

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

The decision to authorise the Mayor to sign the audit engagement letter is not considered significant 
under the terms of the Significance and Engagement Policy. 

OPTIONS 

Option 1:  to authorise the Mayor to sign the document without further amendment, for returning 
to Audit NZ. 

Option 2:  to seek amendments to the engagement letter and authorise the Mayor to liaise with 
Audit NZ on those proposed amendments.   
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Council staff are satisfied with the terms of the letter and have liaised with Audit at a staff level to 
agree on timeframes for information provision to Audit.  For this reason, Option 1 is recommended. 

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

The Council is required under the LGA to include audit opinions in its consultation document and 
LTP.  This letter enables those arrangements to be made. 

Financial 

Audit NZ costs are allowed for in budgets. 

Other 

N/a. 

CONCLUSION 

The Council is asked to authorise the Mayor to sign the attached Audit Engagement Letter for the 
audit of the consultation document and LTP 2018/28.   

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.7 DELEGATION TO THE MAYOR AND CHAIR OF PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR PLAN CHANGE 
13 PROCEEDINGS 

File Reference: REG 6/6/5 PC13 

Author: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Authoriser: Suzette van Aswegen, Chief Executive Officer  

Attachments: 1. Environment Court Minute 3 November 2017 ⇩  
2. Environment Court Minute 31 October 2017 ⇩  
3. Environment Court Minute 13 October 2017 ⇩   

  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To seek Council’s approval for a delegation to the Mayor and Chair of the Planning and Regulations 
Committee to allow them to consider and make decisions on any amendments to Farm Base Areas 
on behalf of the Council.  This delegation is sought in order to enable Council to comply with the 
very short timeframes for lodging the required documents with the Environment Court.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That the Council delegate to the Mayor and the Chair of the Planning and Regulations 
Committee the authority to consider and make decisions on any amendments to Farm Base 
Areas following consultation, in accordance with amended Order D of the Environment 
Court Minute dated 3 November 2017. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Council is presently consulting with landowners in relation to the extent and location of Farm 
Base Areas (FBAs) as part of appeals on its Plan Change 13.  This consultation is occurring in 
accordance with directions from the Environment Court.  The required timetable for this work is as 
follows: 

 The Council must conclude consultation with the relevant station owners and all parties by 
Friday 15 December 2017; 

 The Council is required to report to the Court Registrar by Friday 22 December 2017 as to 
what amended or further FBAs have been agreed to by the Council after consultation. 

The Council must advise station owners of the results of the Council’s decision on their FBAs as soon 
as possible after the 15th of December, to allow for those station owners to register any objections 
with the Court also by 22nd December 2017. 

The delegation to consider the results of the consultation presently being carried out and to decide 
on Council’s position on FBAs rests with the Planning and Regulations Committee.  However there 
are no scheduled Planning and Regulations Committee meetings between now and December 22.  
Further, the timeframes are very tight within which to organise an Extraordinary Meeting of that 
committee.  Staff consider that the most efficient way to progress these decisions in a way that will 
meet Court schedules is for a delegation to be made by Council to the Mayor and Chair of the 
Planning Committee.   
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POLICY STATUS 

N/a. 

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

The decision is not considered significant under the terms of the Council’s Significance and 
Engagement Policy. 

OPTIONS 

Option 1:  For Council to approve the delegation as sought. 

Option 2:  for Council to decline the delegation.  

The Court requires the Council to report on its position on individual FBAs by 22 December, following 
consultation presently being carried out with station owners.  Staff consider that, given time is very 
limited, the most efficient way to comply with the timetable is for Council to delegate this decision.  
For this reason, Option 1 is recommended. 

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

The Local Government Act provides for the Council to make the delegation as recommended. 

Financial 

There are no financial implications. 

Other 

N/a. 

CONCLUSION 

The Council is asked to approve a delegation to the Mayor and Chair of the Planning and Regulations 
Committee to allow them to consider and make decisions on any amendments to Farm Base Areas 
on behalf of the Council.   

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.8 AMENDMENTS TO COUNCIL MEETINGS SCHEDULE FOR 2018 

File Reference: PAD 3/1 

Author: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Authoriser: Suzette van Aswegen, Chief Executive Officer  

Attachments:   
  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To seek the Council’s approval of a revised schedule of Council committee meetings for 2018. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That the Council adopt the attached Revised Meeting Schedule for 2018. 

 

BACKGROUND 

At the Mayor’s request staff have re-looked at the committee meeting schedule for 2018 and 
suggested some amendments to improve efficiencies and certainty for those attending.  Committee 
meeting days are often very full and the practice in 2017 was to have those committees that meet 
quarterly (Forestry, Audit and Risk, and Strategy Committees) all meet on the same day along with 
the three standing committees. 

Staff propose that the committee days be rescheduled as attached, so that the Audit and Risk 
Committee meets on a different (alternate) committee meeting day than the Forestry and Strategy 
Committees.   

Staff further propose that the order of meetings be amended so that on the relevant days the Audit 
and Risk Committee meets first, at 9:30am, ensuring that the independent member of that 
committee has certainty as to the meeting start time of that committee.  The standing committees 
would then follow the conclusion of that meeting. 

POLICY STATUS 

N/a. 

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

The decision is not considered significant under the terms of the Significance and Engagement 
Policy.  The meeting days and times will still be publicly advertised and available. 

OPTIONS 

Option 1: to adopt the amended Council meeting schedule. 

Option 2:  to not adopt the amended Council meeting schedule. 

Option 2 would not address the issues of inefficiencies for members of the committees and would 
continue to result in extended committee days on those days where all committees meet. 
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CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

N/a.  There are no legal implications. 

Financial 

None. 

Other 

N/a. 

CONCLUSION 

The Council is asked to consider a revised meeting schedule to aid efficiencies in the running of 
Council committees.  

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.9 LONG TERM PLAN 2018-28 CONSULTATION DOCUMENT AND KEY ISSUES 

File Reference: PAD 10/3/2 

Author: Katherine Hill, Senior Corporate Planner  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Key Issues and CD Content Outline ⇩   
  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To decide on the Council’s key issues and preferred options for inclusion the draft Long Term Plan 
2018-28 Consultation Document. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That Council considers the funding of roading infrastructure to be a key issue to be included 
in the Consultation Document for the Long Term Plan 2018-28. 

3. That Council resolves to consult with the public on the funding of roading infrastructure. 

4. That Council confirms that option 1 of the three options outlined below is its preferred 
option to address the issue of funding roading infrastructure: 

 Option 1: Allocate a maximum of $300,000 per year to Low Cost Low Risk roading 
improvement programmes and borrow to fund Council’s 49% share. 

 Option 2:  Budget for all identified Low Cost Low Risk roading improvement 
programmes that attract NZTA co-funding, and borrow to fund Council’s 49% share.  

 Option 3: Borrow for all identified Low Cost Low Risk roading improvement 
programmes whether the projects are co-funded or not. 

5. That Council considers the co-funding of infrastructure projects which support tourism to 
be a key issue to be included in the Consultation Document for the Long Term Plan 2018-
28. 

6. That Council resolves to consult with the public on the co-funding of infrastructure projects 
which support tourism. 

7. That Council confirms that option 1 of the two options outlined below is its preferred option 
for the co-funding of infrastructure projects which support tourism: 

 Option 1: Do not allocate any budget to co-fund Council’s share of tourism 
infrastructure projects that may attract government subsidy.  

 Option 2: Include a budget for co-funding tourism infrastructure projects that attract 
government subsidy, and borrow to fund our share of those projects. 

8. That Council note the draft Consultation Document structure outlined in the attachment to 
this report (Proposed Structure of the Consultation Document). 

 

CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9617_1.PDF
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BACKGROUND 

The Local Government Act 2002 requires local authorities to develop a Consultation Document as 
the primary vehicle for public consultation on their proposed Long Term Plan (LTP). The Consultation 
Document and supporting information are audited by Audit New Zealand before final adoption for 
public consultation. 

The purpose of the Consultation Document is to provide an effective basis for public participation 
in the LTP decision-making process. It must be easily understood and contain: 

 A description of the significant issues facing the district over the 10 years of the plan; 

 Options for addressing each of these issues, the preferred option (if any) and the 

implications of each option; 

 Consideration of the consequences for rates, debt and service levels; 

 An overview of the Financial Strategy; and 

 An overview of the Infrastructure Strategy. 

It also provides information on how members of the public can engage in the process and will 
include a submission form and directions as to how online submissions can be made. 

Background to the Key Issues 

The Council has reviewed work programmers, budgets and rates implications in a series of 
workshops as part of developing its LTP.  In drafting the budgets the Council has had to consider a 
number of competing demands and make choices about what can be funded.  Key drivers have been 
to ensure that key infrastructure is maintained and that rates rises remain stable.   

Programmes outlined in the Activity Management Plans and the Infrastructure Strategy show a 
significant programme of work to renew and upgrade roads, community facilities, wastewater, 
stormwater and water supply systems.  These works are considered necessary to ensure the 
district’s infrastructure continues to provide quality services and meet required standards.   

In addition, Council has reviewed the opportunities that presently exist to take up additional funding 
from central government, for tourism infrastructure through the MBIE Tourism Infrastructure Fund 
and for additional roading improvement programmes with New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) 
co-funding.  This additional funding would help the Council to address issues of growth and pressure 
in in the district.  However, to take up these subsidies would require Council to borrow to co-fund 
its share, with a consequent increase in rates to repay debt.    

While the Council is keen to take up these subsidies, it is mindful of the impacts on ratepayers and 
aware that these issues are significant for its communities.  Council should therefore seek feedback 
from the community on whether to provide for these additional projects.    

The Council considered these matters and the options available to it, and indicated option 1 of  each 
of the options outlined was its preferred option on both matters.  The supporting documents and 
budgets have been built around those options.  Council is asked to determine the key issues to be 
included in the Consultation Document, and confirm its preferred option for addressing those 
issues.  These will then be consulted on with the community, before Council makes decisions on 
what will be included in the LTP. 

Other matters 
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As well as the key issues, the Consultation Document will also include information on the following 
‘other matters’ in the upcoming LTP: 

 Key challenges:  

 maintaining current levels of service and operations whilst keeping rates 
affordable 

 maximising the benefits of tourism growth whilst managing increasing demands 
on infrastructure 

 QV valuations and their impact on rates 
 Strategic study of three townships to inform infrastructure and planning programmes 
 Continued funding of tourism promotion at the current level 
 Fairlie water supply upgrade 
 Connecting Pukaki Airport to the Twizel water supply 
 Stormwater treatment facilities in Twizel, Tekapo and Fairlie 
 Twizel Swimming Pool upgrade 
 Twizel Market Place landscaping and upgrade 
 Twizel Community Centre upgrade works 
 Tekapo Domain landscaping and upgrade works 
 Alps2Ocean off-roading of the cycle trail 
 Upgrade of Mackenzie Community Centre, Fairlie 
 Solid waste  
 Council’s approach to Pensioner Housing 
 Council’s approach to Workers Accommodation 

Process 

Once Council has identified the key issues, the Consultation Document will be drafted and provided 
to Councillors for review over the Christmas period. The draft Consultation Document will be 
adopted at the end of January 2018 and forwarded to Audit New Zealand for their formal review.  

The final consultation document will include an opinion from Audit New Zealand. The Consultation 
Document will then be considered by Council for adoption at the end of February 2018. 

It is proposed that the public consultation period will run from 2 March until 3 April 2018. Copies of 
the Consultation Document will be made available at multiple locations throughout the district and 
on Council’s website.  

Public drop-in sessions are also planned for Twizel, Tekapo and Fairlie. 

POLICY STATUS 

The Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy is relevant in assessing key matters for inclusion 
in the Consultation Document. 

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

In accordance with Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy, this matter has been assessed as 
significant because the decision relates to the process for consulting with the public on matters that 
will be included in the Long Term Plan 2018-28. The decisions made will inform the Consultation 
Document which will undergo public consultation in March 2018.  

OPTIONS 

The options available to Council are to either: 
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1. Approve the draft structure and content of the Consultation Document including the key 

issues as detailed in this report, subject to audit changes, or 

 

2. Specify changes to be made to the draft structure and/or content of the Consultation 

Document, subject to audit changes. 

As identified in Option 2 above, Councillors may wish to make amendments to the suggested 
content of the Consultation Document. Any amendments proposed must fit within the parameters 
set by the Local Government Act to provide a fair representation of the matters proposed for 
inclusion within the LTP. 

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

This process is guided by the Local Government Act. 

Financial 

None.  The Long Term Plan process is provided for within budgets. 

Other 

Not applicable. 

CONCLUSION 

Council must consider and decide what key issues it will consult the community on, in the 
preparation of its Long Term Plan.  It has the option of adding to, deleting or changing the key issues 
and options that are proposed for consultation, along with the other matters presented in this 
report. Any changes need to take into account the provisions of the Local Government Act and 
Council’s own Significance and Engagement Policy. 

When selecting Council’s preferred option on each key issue identified, Council has full discretion. 
Choosing a preferred option for publication in the Consultation Document does not commit Council 
to that option in the final LTP. It is expected that, prior to adopting the LTP in June 2018, Council will 
consider outcomes of the public consultation undertaken. 

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.10 LONG TERM PLAN FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

File Reference: PAD 10/3/2 

Author: Paul Morris, Chief Financial Officer  

Authoriser: Suzette van Aswegen, Chief Executive Officer  

Attachments: 1. Forecast Statement of Comprehensive Income ⇩  
2. Forecast Statement of Financial Position ⇩  
3. Forecast Statement of Cash Flows ⇩  
4. Forecast Summary of Capital Expenditure ⇩  
5. Forecast Summary of Deprecation ⇩  
6. Statement of Reserves Movement ⇩  
7. Funding Impact Statement (Whole of Council) ⇩  
8. Notes to the Financial Statements ⇩  
9. Financial Prudence Benchmarks and Indicators ⇩  
10. Projected Number of Rating Units ⇩  
11. Rating Impact on Sample Properties ⇩   

  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is for the Council to adopt the financial information for the 2018-2028 
Long Term Plan, to be sent to audit.  The financial information forms part of the supporting 
information to the Council’s Consultation Document. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That the Council adopt the following financial information as supporting information for the 
Long Term Plan 2018-28, for audit: 

a) Forecast Statement of Comprehensive Income; 

b) Forecast Statement of Financial Position; 

c) Forecast Statement of Cashflows; 

d) Forecast Summary of Capital Expenditure; 

e) Forecast Summary of Depreciation; 

f) Statement of Reserves Movement; 

g) Funding Impact Statement (Whole of Council); 

h) Notes to the Financial Statements; 

i) Financial Prudence Benchmark and Indicators; 

j) Projected Number of Rating Units; 

k) Rating Impact on Sample Properties. 

 

CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_1.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_2.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_3.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_4.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_5.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_6.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_7.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_8.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_9.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_10.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9614_11.PDF
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BACKGROUND 

The Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) requires that a Long Term Plan (LTP) include certain financial 
information.  This includes the financial position of Council, capital expenditure and rating 
information for the period of the LTP.  All supporting information including financial information 
must be adopted by Council prior to adopting the Consultation Document. 

Section 93C of the LGA requires that the Consultation Document contains a report from the Auditor 
General on whether it gives effect to its statutory purpose, and on the quality of the information 
and assumptions underlying the information in the document.  Audit NZ has been engaged for this 
purpose.  The next step is to make the financial information and all other supporting documents 
available to audit.   

The following components form the attached supporting information:  

a) Forecast Statement of Comprehensive Income 

b) Forecast Statement of Financial Position 

c) Forecast Statement of Cashflows 

d) Forecast Summary of Capital Expenditure 

e) Forecast Summary of Depreciation 

f) Statement of Reserves Movement 

g) Funding Impact Statement (Whole of Council) 

h) Notes to the Financial Statements 

i) Financial Prudence Benchmark and Indicators 

j) Projected Number of Rating Units 

k) Rating Impact on Sample Properties 

POLICY STATUS 

N/A 

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

In accordance with Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy, these matters have been assessed 
as significant because the decisions relate to supporting information for the Consultation Document 
and the Long Term Plan 2018/28.  The financial information adopted will form part of the supporting 
information to the Consultation Document which will undergo public consultation in March 2018.  

OPTIONS 

The options available to Council are to either: 

1) Adopt the financial information as specified in recommendation 2; or 

2) Instruct staff to amend the financial information, and adopt the amended information for 
audit.  

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

This process is guided by the Local Government Act 2002. 
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Financial 

N/A 

Other 

N/A 

CONCLUSION 

Council is required to have adopted all supporting information for the Consultation Document prior 
to adopting the Consultation Document itself. This paper seeks the adoption of the financial 
information identified above, in order that it can be sent for audit.  

 

SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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8.11 LONG TERM PLAN SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

File Reference: PAD 10/3/2 

Author: Katherine Hill, Senior Corporate Planner  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Community and Township Services AMP (under separate cover) ⇨  
2. Governance and Corporate Services AMP (under separate cover) ⇨  
3. Regulatory Services AMP (under separate cover) ⇨  
4. Stormwater AMP (under separate cover) ⇨  
5. Tourism, Economic Development and Commercial Activities AMP 

(under separate cover) ⇨  
6. Transportation AMP (under separate cover) ⇨  
7. Wastewater AMP (under separate cover) ⇨  
8. Water AMP (under separate cover) ⇨  
9. Financial Strategy (under separate cover) ⇨  
10. Infrastructure Strategy (under separate cover) ⇨   

  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To seek that Council adopt a number of supporting documents to the 2018-2028 Long Term Plan, to 
be sent to audit. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the report be received. 

2. That the Council adopt the attached Financial Strategy as supporting information for the 
Consultation Document and Long Term Plan, subject to audit changes. 

3. That the Council adopt the attached Infrastructure Strategy as supporting information for 
the Consultation Document and Long Term Plan, subject to audit changes. 

4. That the Council adopt the attached Regulatory Services Activity Management Plan as 
supporting information for the Consultation Document and Long Term Plan, subject to audit 
changes. 

5. That the Council adopt the attached Community and Township Services Activity 
Management Plan as supporting information for the Consultation Document and Long Term 
Plan, subject to audit changes. 

6. That the Council adopt the attached Governance and Corporate Services Activity 
Management Plan as supporting information for the Consultation Document and Long Term 
Plan, subject to audit changes. 

7. That the Council adopt the attached Tourism, Economic Development and Commercial 
Activities Activity Management Plan as supporting information for the Consultation 
Document and Long Term Plan, subject to audit changes. 

8. That the Council adopt the attached Water Supplies Activity Management Plan as 
supporting information for the Consultation Document and Long Term Plan, subject to audit 
changes. 

../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=144
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=170
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=187
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=209
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=323
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=347
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=545
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=691
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=873
../../../RedirectToInvalidFileName.aspx?FileName=CO_20171212_ATT_2095_EXCLUDED.PDF#PAGE=894
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9615_1.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9615_2.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9615_3.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9615_4.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9615_5.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9615_6.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9615_7.PDF
CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_files/CO_20171212_AGN_2095_AT_Attachment_9615_8.PDF
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9. That the Council adopt the attached Wastewater Activity Management Plan as supporting 
information for the Consultation Document and Long Term Plan, subject to audit changes. 

10. That the Council adopt the attached Stormwater Activity Management Plan as supporting 
information for the Consultation Document and Long Term Plan, subject to audit changes. 

11. That the Council adopt the attached Transportation Activity Management Plan as 
supporting information for the Consultation Document and Long Term Plan, subject to audit 
changes. 

 

BACKGROUND 

Activity Management Plans 

As part of Council Long Term Plan (LTP) process, Council develops Activity Management Plans 
(AMPs) for each of its groups of activities.  

Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) requires that certain information is provided 
on groups of activities in the LTP.  This includes: 

(a) identifying the activities within the group of activities; 

(b) identifying the rationale for delivery of the group of activities (including the community 
outcomes to which the group of activities primarily contributes); 

(c) outlining any significant negative effects that any activity within the group of activities may 
have on the local community; 

(d) including a statement of the intended levels of service provision, any performance 
measures and performance targets set by the Council for each performance measure, and any 
intended changes to levels of service; 

(e) including a funding impact statement in relation to each group of activities.  

This information is contained within each of the eight AMPs attached. 

 

Financial and Infrastructure Strategies 

The Financial Strategy and the Infrastructure Strategy are mandatory documents under sections 
101A and 101B of the LGA.   

 

Process Requirements 

Section 93G of the LGA requires that this supporting information is adopted prior to the adoption 
of the consultation document: 

93G Information to be adopted by local authority in relation to long-term plan and 
consultation document 

Before adopting a consultation document under section 93A, the local authority must prepare 
and adopt the information that— 

(a) is relied on by the content of the consultation document adopted under section 93A; and 

(b) is necessary to enable the Auditor-General to give the reports required by sections 
93C(4) and 93D(4); and 

http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/2002/0084/latest/link.aspx?search=sw_096be8ed815ed1ed_93G_25_se&p=1&id=DLM6236844#DLM6236844
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/2002/0084/latest/link.aspx?search=sw_096be8ed815ed1ed_93G_25_se&p=1&id=DLM6236838#DLM6236838
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/2002/0084/latest/link.aspx?search=sw_096be8ed815ed1ed_93G_25_se&p=1&id=DLM6236840#DLM6236840
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/2002/0084/latest/link.aspx?search=sw_096be8ed815ed1ed_93G_25_se&p=1&id=DLM6236840#DLM6236840
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/2002/0084/latest/link.aspx?search=sw_096be8ed815ed1ed_93G_25_se&p=1&id=DLM6236841#DLM6236841
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(c) provides the basis for the preparation or amendment of the long-term plan. 

 

Council is therefore asked to adopt these documents at the meeting.  Following the meeting, the 
documents will be sent to Audit NZ.  Over the next few weeks staff will compile an initial draft of 
the LTP document as well as continuing to progress the consultation document. 

The Council will also be asked to adopt the financial information that supports the consultation 
document and forms the basis for the LTP audit.  This is covered in a separate agenda item.   

POLICY STATUS 

N/a. 

SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION 

In accordance with Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy, these matters have been assessed 
as significant because the decisions relate to supporting information for the Consultation Document 
and the Long Term Plan 2018/28.  The information adopted will form part of the supporting 
information to the Consultation Document which will undergo public consultation in March 2018.  

OPTIONS 

Option 1: that the Council adopt the supporting information as attached, for providing to audit. 

Option 2:  that the Council specify any amendments to the supporting information and adopt the 
documents as amended, for providing to audit. 

 The Council has held a number of workshops and meetings on the LTP, including consideration of 
budgets, priorities, and key issues.  The AMPs and the Infrastructure and Financial Strategies reflect 
the outcomes of those workshops and meetings.  In a related agenda item Council is asked to 
approve the audit engagement letter for the formal audit of the consultation document and LTP.  
That letter contains timeframes within which we must make the supporting information available 
to audit, to allow a timely audit process.  If the supporting documents were not to be adopted at 
this meeting then audit timeframes may not be met.   

CONSIDERATIONS 

Legal 

The LGA states that the Council must adopt all supporting information prior to adopting the 
Consultation Document.  The Council is asked to adopt these documents which will then be made 
available to audit. 

Financial 

N/a.  The LTP process is provided for within existing budgets. 

Other 

N/a. 

CONCLUSION 

Council is asked to adopt the Activity Management Plans and Financial and Infrastructure Strategies 
as supporting documents to the LTP.  This will then enable the next steps in the LTP process to be 
undertaken. 
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SUZETTE VAN ASWEGEN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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9 COMMUNITY BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS 

9.1 MINUTES OF TEKAPO COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 1 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 

Author: Arlene Goss, Committee Administrator (Temp) Arlene Goss 

Authoriser:  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Tekapo Community Board Meeting - 1 November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Tekapo Community Board Meeting held on Wednesday 1 
November 2017 be received and the recommendations therein be adopted. 

 

TEKAPO COMMUNITY HALL FEES AND CHARGES: 

That Council notes the resolution made by the Tekapo Community Board regarding the Tekapo 
Community Hall Fees and Charges. 

 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/1  

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Lyn Martin 

1. That the report be received. (The Community Board agreed fees and charges for hall hire 
remain the same with no change. ) 
 

CARRIED 
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
TEKAPO COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING 

HELD AT THE TEKAPO COMMUNITY HALL LOUNGE, LAKE TEKAPO 
ON WEDNESDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 4:00PM 

 

PRESENT: Steve Howes (Community Board Member), Lyn Martin (Community Board 
Member), Caroll Simcox (Community Board Member), Stella Sweney 
(Community Board Member) (Chair), Cr Russell Armstrong (Councillor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Suzette van Aswegen (Planning and Regulations Manager) Garth Nixon 
(Community Facilities Manager) Scott McKenzie (Roading Manager) Keri-Ann 
Andrews (Committee Administrator) Joanne Bradley (Three River Lodge) and 
Andrew McDonald (Church of the Good Shepherd) Murray Cox (Tekapo Project 
Manager) 15 members of the public 

 

1 OPENING  

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

 

2 APOLOGIES  

APOLOGY 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/84  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Caroll Simcox 

That apologies be received from Cr Anne Munro, Cr James Leslie, Cr Paul Hannagan, Mayor 
Graham Smith and the Chief Executive Officer be accepted. 

CARRIED 

 
 

3 PUBLIC FORUM  

The Chair noted concern had been expressed regarding the number of visitors staying in Residential 
1 Zones.   

Ms van Aswegen spoke to the public regarding Council regulations and the targeted tourism rate. 
She added the implications of non-registered accommodation providers requires managing and 
Council are reviewing current protocols highlighting enforcement.  

The Chair invited Mrs Bradley to address the Community Board regarding visitor numbers in 
Residential 1 Zones.  

Mrs Bradley said she had concerns regarding the current process and overcrowding, homes were 
being overloaded by booking agents and visitors themselves. She asks for the Council to apply 
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stricter and consistent policing and ongoing communication and education with accommodation 
providers.  

The Chair suggested a workshop with the Community to discuss issues further.  

Ms van Aswegen added Council had budgeted for a enforcement officer within next year’s budget 
and Council were currently reviewing the District Plan.  

Mrs Simcox spoke as an accommodation provider, she said education would be key both for 
property managers and visitors and could be a 12 month process. She said she had encouraged 
property owners to apply for resource consents.  

Murray Cox said the delay regarding the District Plan review had caused several problems. He said 
the District Plan review is essential to deal with all the issues. He added a community consultation 
and agreement would be required.  

Ms van Aswegen reported the District Plan had been placed hold due to impending National Housing 
Standards, Government would announce. She said the plan review had continued as much as 
possible but expressed concern regarding spending $500,000 of ratepayers money on a District Plan 
review that would require updating when the new standards were adopted.  

Sarah Fastier from Simons Hill Station spoke to the Community Board on behalf of the farming 
community. She highlighted that the rural communities of the Mackenzie were excluded from the 
Community Board area. She noted this was a time when the community needed to be resilient and 
combined.  

The Chair welcomed Mr McDonald to the meeting regarding the Church of the Good Shepherd 
protection plans and parking improvements. 

Mr McDonald spoke to the Church’s presentation. 

Questions and answers followed Mr McDonald’s presentations. He invited the Community to attend 
the Church of the Good Shepherd meetings.  

Sharron Binns reported the St John service were desperate for volunteers and there were no 
experienced volunteers in Tekapo currently. She asked the Community Board for any assistance they 
could provide. 

At 5:21pm the public forum concluded.  

 

4 VISITORS   

Murray Cox spoke to agenda item 7.5 in general business regarding the viewshaft project and 
Lakeside Drive project completion.  

 

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.  
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6 REPORTS 

7.1 MINUTES OF TEKAPO COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 20 SEPTEMBER 2017 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/85  

Moved: Caroll Simcox 
Seconded: Lyn Martin 

1. That the Minutes of the Tekapo Community Board Meeting held on Wednesday 20 
September 2017 be received and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

CARRIED 

 

7.2 TEKAPO COMMUNITY BOARD MATTERS UNDER ACTION 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/86  

Moved: Lyn Martin 
Seconded: Caroll Simcox 

That the information be noted.  

CARRIED 

 

Date Target Date Subject Actioned Required By 

26 April  17 7 June 2017 Tekapo Squash Club:  The Mayor reported no change 
regarding the Squash Club. The Chair asked for a summary 
report for the next meeting.   

Mr Barnett 

 

26 April 17  

Submitted 
applications 
close 12 April 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town Projects: 

1. Upgrade of Hamilton Drive – Mr Nixon reported NZMCA 
had offered to contribute to the upgrade required, new 
compacting rubbish bins were being installed. He said 
work had commenced on the dump station and delivery 
scheduled before Christmas.  

2. Lakeside Drive: The Chair reported works would start in 
2018.  

3. Tekapo Development Projects List: Scope of projects 
confirmed by the Finance Committee include: 

Funding Effectively Confirmed For: 
a. Funding for domain finishing 
b. Public Green 
c. Landscaping within viewing shafts  
d. Boat Ramp access from Lakeside Drive 
e. Playground – Mr Cox reported the playground is 

progressing.   
Remaining Projects: 

f. East and Western Carparks 
g. Long Vehicle Overflow Carpark 

A to G had been accepted by the Finance Committee as part of 
the development project. G will be placed on the Long Term 
Plan.  

Mr Nixon/ Mr Barnett 
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Mr Nixon reported an MBIE application regarding the Church 
of Good Shepherd carpark area had been submitted. He 
added the plans would be available for public view.  

26 April 17 Urgent  60km Speed Limit Extension: The Chair reported photographs 
had been forwarded to David Scarlett. The Chair welcomed 
further photographs to be received. Mr McKenzie reported he 
had met with NZTA on Tuesday and they had discussed the 
speed limit extension concerns. He said it would be likely the 
60kmh may be extended to Mantra and discussions to extend 
further were ongoing.  

David Scarlett - NZTA 

8 June 16 Ongoing Civil Defence: The Chair reported Mr Mackay had met with 
Emergency Event Teams.       

Ms Morrison/ Mr 
Barnett 

26 April  17 Ongoing Solar System Project: The Chair reported stage 2 had almost 
been completed. She said there were ongoing questions 
regarding stage 3. Mr Nixon confirmed broken tiles required 
replacement. This item can now be removed.     

Mr Nixon 

26 April  17 April Town Gardener: Mr Nixon reported interviewing applicants 
would continue. He said in the meantime Whitestone were 
extending their service.  

Mr Nixon 

26 April 17 Ongoing Matters from Previous Meetings: 

 Request to stop or close the section of Sealy Street 
within Murray Park – Application had not been received 
by Council  from the applicants. The Chair reported a 
conflict of interest may exist regarding the Mantra’s 
Lawyer and previous engagement with Council.  

 Church of the Good Shepherd Road Access and Parking – 
Mr McDonald presented to the Board. 

 Residential 1 Zone visitor accommodation.  

 

 

 

20 September 17 November The Community Board agreed fees and charges for hall hire 
remain the same with no change.  

Mr Nixon 

 
 

7.3 TEKAPO COMMUNITY BOARD FINANCIAL REPORT SEPTEMBER 2017 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/87  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Lyn Martin 

That the report be received and the information noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Nixon spoke to the report.  
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7.4 TEKAPO COMMUNITY HALL FEES AND CHARGES 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/88  

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Lyn Martin 

1. That the report be received.  

CARRIED 

 

Mr Nixon reported the Community Board had expressed concerns regarding hall usage in relation 
to the current fees and charges. He asked if the Community Board felt a further review would be 
required. 
 
Mr Nixon suggested advertising of the current fees and charges to the community. 
 
The Community Board agreed fees and charges for hall hire remain the same with no change.   
 
 

7.5 GENERAL BUSINESS 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/89  

Moved: Caroll Simcox 
Seconded: Steve Howes 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Nixon spoke to the general items. Mr Cox updated the board regarding the viewshaft project 
and Lakeside Drive project completion.  
 

1. Pay-wave payment facility – Bridge Toilets.  

 

Mr Nixon reported an issue had occurred during Labour Weekend. He said when the problem 

had been identified an Electrician had been dispatched and the problem resolved. He said 

the toilet had received two or three pay-wave transactions per day.  

 

2. Murray Cox, Tekapo Project Manager will update regarding the viewshaft project and 

Lakeside Drive project completion. 

 

Mr Cox reported the viewshaft by Mackenzie’s Bar and Grill was well underway and delays 

could occur regarding concreting. He said five or the mature trees had been maintained, 

wooden decking erected and lighting installed around the stone walls would shine through 

the concrete. He estimated works would be completed at the end of November.  
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Mr Cox said the main Lakeside Drive contract had been completed and further maintenance 

remained and would be completed. He said as part of the project Lakeside Drive had been 

extended on the left-hand side. He added an upgraded sewer had been installed and 

improvement works received to Domain Road. He noted further tidy up works would be 

required at the corner of the Squash Club with the removal of trees.  

 

7.6 MEETING SCHEDULE 2018 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To adopt the Tekapo Community Board 2018 meeting schedule.  

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/90  

Moved: Steve Howes 
Seconded: Caroll Simcox 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  TKCB/2017/91  

Moved: Steve Howes 
Seconded: Caroll Simcox 

2. That the Tekapo Community Board 2018 meeting schedule be adopted.  

CARRIED 

 

 

7.7 WARD MEMBERS REPORT/ REPORT FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

Cr Armstrong reported Jason Menard had joined the ChristchurchNZ team and presented to a 
Council meeting yesterday. 
 
Mrs Martin said Brightstars Kindergarten had been accredited and was operating and would require 
ongoing fundraising to continue operations in the future.  
 
Mr Nixon reported he had received correspondence from a Tekapo Resident who neighbours the 
Community Centre grounds and indicated a boundary fence would require replacement. He added 
the Community Board would be required to pay for half of the new fence works.  
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The Meeting closed at 6:00PM. 

 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Tekapo Community Board Meeting held on 13 
December 2017. 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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9.2 MINUTES OF FAIRLIE COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 2 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 

Author: Arlene Goss, Committee Administrator (Temp)  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Fairlie Community Board Meeting - 2 November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Fairlie Community Board Meeting held on Thursday 2 November 
2017 be received and the recommendations therein be adopted. 

 
 
 

That Council notes the resolution made by the Fairlie Community Board regarding the application 
for a mobile shop and trader permit. 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For the Committee to make a recommendation as to whether a Mobile Shop and Trader Permit 
to the applicant (James Rennie) under the Mackenzie District Council Mobile Shop and Traders 
Bylaw 2014 be issued. 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  FCB/2017/1  

Moved: Pauline Jackson 
Seconded: Chair 

2. That the Fairlie Community Board recommends that a Mobile Shop and Trader Permit be 
issued to the applicant providing the applicant meets Council’s conditions . 

In Favour: Chair, Pauline Jackson and Cr Chris Clarke 

Against: Nil 

Abstained: Carolyn Coakley 

CARRIED 

 



Fairlie Community Board Meeting Minutes 2 November 2017 

Page 175 

   

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
 

 

Fairlie Community Board Meeting 
 

2 November 2017  
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
FAIRLIE COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING 

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE 
ON THURSDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 4:30PM 

 

PRESENT: Les Blacklock (Chair), Carolyn Coakley, Pauline Jackson, Cr Chris Clarke 
(Councillor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Suzette van Aswegen (Planning and Regulations Manager) Garth Nixon 
(Community Facilities Manager) Mayor Graham Smith, Cr Anne Munro and 
Keri-Ann Andrews (Committee Administrator) Suzanne Bylth (Resource 
Consent Planner) 5:30pm-5:48pm Karina Morrow (Planning Manager) 5:30-
5:48pm Anne Thomson (Heartlands Fairlie) 4:30pm to 4:45pm 

 

1 OPENING  

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

2 APOLOGIES  

APOLOGY 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  FCB/2017/50  

Moved: Carolyn Coakley 
Seconded: Pauline Jackson 

That apologies be received from Damon Smith, Cr Stuart Barwood and the Chief Executive Officer. 
CARRIED 

 

3 PUBLIC FORUM  

The Chair welcomed Anne Thomson to the meeting. She reported the Community Enhancement 
Board had gained funding for a Community Development Worker in Fairlie and Twizel. She noted 
Tekapo would receive the same delivery of service.  

Mrs Thomson also reported:   

 Incredible Eatables were growing well and encouraged the Community to use the resources.  

 Fairlie Lions had purchased a house next to Moreh Home to offer a day care service for 

persons with dementia or neurological problems. The volunteer service would be available 

for a maximum of five patients at one time.  

 The Skatepark had raised $8,000 towards designs and a building quote. Once these plans 

and quote had been accepted investigation for external funding sources would begin.    

 Seats from the Council building courtyard area would be removed and placed outside 

Pinewood Motel, Sloane Street, the Swimming Pool area and the Show Grounds entrance. 

 Heritage Market had been a success. 
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 Christmas Parade and New Year’s Day Parade had been organised.  

The Chair thanked Mrs Thomson for her report and contribution to the community.  

 

4 VISITORS   

There were no visitors. 

 

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.  

 

6 REPORTS 

7.1 MINUTES OF FAIRLIE COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 21 SEPTEMBER 2017 

COMMUNITY BOARD  FCB/2017/51  

Moved: Cr Clarke 
Seconded: Pauline Jackson 

1. That the Minutes of the Fairlie Community Board Meeting held on Thursday 21 September 
2017 be received and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

CARRIED 

 
 

7.2 FAIRLIE COMMUNITY BOARD MATTERS UNDER ACTION 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the information be noted. 

 

FAIRLIE COMMUNITY BOARD MATTERS UNDER ACTION: 

  
1. Regent Street: The Community Board resolved that the Fairlie Community Board recommend 

to Council that the full width of Regent Street be sealed from Main Street to the first intersection 
in year one of the long term plan 2018-2028.  The Mayor said the resolution had been received 
by Council and a report by the Roading Department would be submitted to the next Asset and 
Services Committee meeting.   

 
2. Gray Street: Mr McKenzie reported he had met with Mr Guiney regarding the possibility of a 

walkway. Mr Guiney had directed Mr McKenzie to speak with Mr Wieldraayer regarding securing 
the required land for a walk way. Mr McKenzie would endeavour to draw a draft plan before the 
next Community Board meeting.  
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 The Community Board asked for urgent action. Cr Clarke expressed his frustration regarding the 
lack of works entering into the holiday period.  

 
3. Proposed Electric Car Station: Mr Nixon reported all cables were connected and functioning. He 

added final road marking would be required.  

4. Bus Stop Shelter: Mr Nixon reported NZTA had approved the bus shelter and funding would be 
supplied through the Heartlands Resource Centre.   

5. Broadband Options: Cr Clarke reported The Government had announced an extension of 450 
households in Fairlie would receive fibre connections before the end of 2022. He added Rural 
Broadband providers had also received funding. He noted Albury would receive a new 
transmission tower within the next five years , servicing the Limestone Valley and Albury to Cave 
areas and if funding increases Burkes Pass could possible receive a transmission tower. He 
reported Chorus would hold a public meeting with Ashwick Flat residence and attend a meeting 
at Council to discuss problems that occurred last year with phone line outages.  He added a 
phone line at Ashwick Flat would be replaced when the weather and river levels permitted.   

 
6. Fairlie Skateboard and Scooter Park: The Skatepark had raised $8,000 towards designs and a 

building quote. Once these plans and quote had been accepted investigation for external 

funding sources would begin.    

7. Drinking Fountain and Cigarette Butt Receptacle: Cr Clarke reported removal of earth from 
planter boxes would allow for the installation of the drinking fountain.   

 
8. War Memorial Maintenance: Mr Nixon had followed up with the Contractor and works would 

begin in December 2017. 
 
9. Town Works Update and Priority Works:  The Community Board requested information updates 

regarding works being carried out around Town regularly, this would enable Board members to 
keep the Community informed when new works were started.  

 
Cr Clarke asked for a priority of works list for the Board’s information. 
 

10. Abley Transportation Strategy: Mr McKenzie would liaise with Mr Noon to set a date for a casual 
workshop including a walk around Town to discuss transportation needs. He added a way finding 
study had taken place for Fairlie.  

 
 The Community Board expressed frustration in the time taken to process Roading and Parking 

requests and works.  
 
11. Seating around Fairlie Township: Cr Clarke reported three locations would receive seating over 

summer on a trial basis. Mr Nixon reported new seating had been installed at Allandale Bridge, 
he said the Community Board had painted all seats in the Community and asked the Community 
Board would to consider replacing some old seats at McLean Park. 

  
 The Chair felt the condition of tables and chairs on Denmark Street required attention. He added 

bench seating on the Main Street also could be an option.  
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The Community Board agreed Denmark Street would be a preferred option and agreed the 
current trial of Town seats would require new seating be arranged for the Council Courtyard 
area.   

 
12. Village Green History Panel: Mrs Thomson recommended an information panel be displayed on 

the Village Green detailing the Village Greens rich history. She noted Mr Sutherland would 
provide the historical information.  

 
13. Street Lighting: Mr Haar said an application had been submitted to NZTA to update the Districts 

Street lighting. He added new locations for lights would be investigated and dark spots 
improved. The Community Board were asked to provide feedback to Mr Haar regarding dark 
spots and high need areas around Fairlie. The Chair suggested feedback requested from the 
community via the Accessible regarding faulty streetlights. 

 
 

7.3 FAIRLIE COMMUNITY BOARD FINANCIAL REPORT SEPTEMBER 2017 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  FCB/2017/52  

Moved: Pauline Jackson 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That the report be received and the information noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Nixon spoke to the report.  
 
The Swimming Pool would open for the season on Saturday 4 November 2017.  
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7.4 APPLICATION FOR MOBILE SHOP AND TRADER PERMIT 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For the Committee to make a recommendation as to whether a Mobile Shop and Trader Permit 
to the applicant (James Rennie) under the Mackenzie District Council Mobile Shop and Traders 
Bylaw 2014 be issued. 

 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  FCB/2017/53  

Moved: Pauline Jackson 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That the report be received. 

In Favour: Chair, Pauline Jackson and Cr Chris Clarke 

Against: Nil 

Abstained: Carolyn Coakley 

CARRIED 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  FCB/2017/54  

Moved: Pauline Jackson 
Seconded: Chair 

2. That the Fairlie Community Board recommends that a Mobile Shop and Trader Permit be 
issued to the applicant providing the applicant meets Council’s conditions . 

In Favour: Chair, Pauline Jackson and Cr Chris Clarke 

Against: Nil 

Abstained: Carolyn Coakley 

CARRIED 

 

Carolyn Coakley expressed a conflict of interest as a business owner and had abstained from the 
vote.   
 
Ms Blyth spoke to the report. 
 
Cr Clarke asked if other traders using the area over summer held permits. He expressed concern 
regarding traffic speed and availability for accessing the highly congested area. He noted the permit 
would only be for a six month period. He highlighted rubbish removal would be essential.  
 
The Mayor noted the speed limit had been raised to 60 kilometres per hour.  
 
Mrs Morrow added discussion would be required regarding long term arrangements and permit 
issuing in the area. She said Council had concerns regarding traffic management and signage would 
be required.  She said the permit could be granted with restrictions, signage and distance from the 
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road. She noted Mr McKenzie had recommended a traffic management plan could be required to 
help address traffic concerns and no mobile trader can operate within 200 metres of any shop for 
the sale of similar goods.  
 
The Chair felt the cart could supply vibrancy to the Town, noting all conditions applied to the consent 
would be required to be met.  
 
Mr Nixon added the caravan would be required to accommodate the mowing of the green. He 
added Twizel had charged a fee because traders operated within a commercial area.   
 
Cr Clarke felt residence on Denmark Street could possibly be consulted and felt the Bylaw should be 
reviewed.   
 
Ms van Aswegen said the Bylaw had a presumption for this activity with restrictions that could be 
applied.   
 
 

7.5 MEETING SCHEDULE 2018 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To adopt the Fairlie Community Board 2018 meeting schedule.  

 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  FCB/2017/55  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Carolyn Coakley 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  FCB/2017/56  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Carolyn Coakley 

2. That the Fairlie Community Board 2018 meeting schedule be adopted.  

CARRIED 
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7.6 WARD MEMBERS REPORT/ REPORT FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

Cr Clarke highlighted the appointment of a new Chief Executive Officer. He reported on 17 

December 2017 Council would hold a Christmas Party for all Staff and Elected Members. He noted 
work continued on the Long Term Plan. The Orari Temuka Opihi Pareora Zone Water Management 
Committee had been working towards a strategic plan and would begin public consultation, he 
expressed the importance of engagement from the Community.  
 
Cr Clarke reported Annabelle Bray had returned to ChristchurchNZ and the employment of Jason 
Menard would assist with the information technology sector of ChristchurchNZ primarily the 
Mackenzie region.  
 

The Meeting closed at 5:57PM. 

 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Fairlie Community Board Meeting held on 7 
December 2017. 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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9.3 MINUTES OF TWIZEL COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 30 OCTOBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 5 

Author: Arlene Goss, Committee Administrator (Temp)  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Twizel Community Board Meeting - 30 October 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Twizel Community Board Meeting held on Monday 30 October 
2017 be received and the recommendations therein be adopted. 

 

PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT:  

That Council notes and considers the resolutions made by the Twizel Community Board regarding 
playground equipment in Twizel. 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/1  

Moved: Mr Luke Paardekooper 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

That the Twizel Community Board ask Council to pay the $3,300 from the reserve fund account 
to pay for playground equipment. 

CARRIED 

AFFECTED PERSON APPROVAL: 

That Council notes the Twizel Community Board resolution regarding a request for affected person 
approval (under Section 95E of the Resource Management Act 1991). 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For the Community Board to consider a request for affected person approval (under Section 95E 
of the Resource Management Act 1991) concerning a resource consent application from K. A. 
Marshall for a proposed garage at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel. 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/2  

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

2. That the Twizel Community Board recommend to Council that affected person approval be 
provided with regard to resource consent application RM170128 to erect a garage with 
reduced boundary setbacks at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel.    

CARRIED 
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
TWIZEL COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING 

HELD AT THE TWIZEL ST JOHN'S ROOMS, TWIZEL 
ON MONDAY, 30 OCTOBER 2017 AT 3:00PM 

 

PRESENT: Jacqui de Buyzer (Chair), Norman Geary, Luke Paardekooper, Pat Shuker, Cr 
Paul Hannagan (Councillor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Garth Nixon (Community Facilities Manager) Keri-Ann Andrews (Committee 
Administrator), Karina Morrow (Planning Manager) from 3:07pm-4:57pm, 
Suzanne Blyth (Resource Management Planner – Consents) from 3:07pm-
4:57pm, Mayor Graham Smith from 3:45pm, Cr Anne Munro, Cr James Leslie, 
Cr Russell Armstrong, Angie Taylor (Solid Waste Manager and Twizel Town 
Manager) and 9 members of the public.  

 

1 OPENING  

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

 

2 APOLOGIES  

APOLOGY 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/112  

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Norman Geary 

That an apology be received from Mayor Graham Smith for lateness.  
CARRIED 

 
 

3 PUBLIC FORUM  

The Chair invited the public to speak.  

Rick Ramsay and Colin McKinney Chairman of the Twizel Heritage Trail updated the Board on two 
heritage trails, noticeboards and photos guiding and showcasing the rich hydro history of Twizel. Mr 
Ramsay said a brochure had also been planned including instructions and maps. He added in 
addition three plinths would be erected in the Twizel Market Place highlighting original shops and 
businesses.  

Mr Ramsay asked for approval from the Community Board and Council regarding the positions of 
the noticeboard plinths within the Market Place.  

The Community Board supported the placement of plinths within the Market Place.  
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Shaun Norman informed the Community Board of proposed plans to erect a plain table at the top 
of Man Made Hill to indicate the visible Mountain Peaks. He said the outer Heritage Trail would 
comprise of a 100 kilometre round trip.  

Judy Norman expressed her disappointment on the recent removal of tussock garden opposite the 
Council Offices and Information Centre. She asked why plans for the upgrade to the area were not 
displayed for public viewing.  

The Chair replied that the plans had been displayed and that further discussion and consultation 
would take place before works began.  

Frank Hocken addressed the Community Board expressing his frustration regarding Council Staff 
and previous Chief Executive Officers. He asked how the growth in the District would be cater for 
and if Council infrastructure improvement and expansion had been planned. He noted the 
appointment of a District Nurse for Twizel. 

Shaun Norman highlighted the tree felling on the corner of North West Arch and Ohau Road and 
asked when the public walkway would be repaired. 

Mr Nixon replied when the felling had been completed the track would be reinstated.  

Shaun Norman asked when the cycle path up Ohau Road and onto Ostler Road would receive 
maintenance. He said the track is not suitable for cyclists due to the large gravel material 

The Community Board agreed the track required maintenance and asked for works to be completed 
before early December to accommodate cyclist for the busy holiday period and Maadi Cup Rowing 
Regatta.   

 

4 VISITORS   

There were no visitors.  

 

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.  

 

6 REPORTS 

7.1 CORRESPONDENCE - TWIZEL AREA SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

COMMUNITY BOARD RECOMMENDATION    

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Luke Paardekooper 

That the information be noted. 

 

Mr Geary spoke to the Board regarding the publicly accessible Wi-Fi location currently at the 
Community Library.  
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Cr Leslie said that National Library required all public libraries to provide free Wi-Fi. Mr Geary asked 
if restrictions could be applied to Wi-Fi availability within the Library and free Wi-Fi be supplied 
within the Market Place. 
 
Cr Leslie felt the school had to be responsible for who was on the school premises. He noted free 
Wi-Fi was already available at the Market Place.  
 
Cr Hannagan felt the tree shade encouraged people to congregate around the school grounds. He 
suggested notices be erected and the school encourage people to move on.  
 
The Community Board acknowledge the issue and expressed an interest in working with the school 
to resolve the problem.  
 
 

7.2 CORRESPONDENCE - THANK YOU CARD FROM MACKENZIE WARBLERS 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/113  

Moved: Norman Geary 
Seconded: Pat Shuker 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

The Chair noted the thank you card received from the Mackenzie Warblers.  
 
 

7.3 MINUTES OF TWIZEL COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 18 SEPTEMBER 2017 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/114  

Moved: Cr Paul Hannagan 
Seconded: Norman Geary 

1. That the Minutes of the Twizel Community Board Meeting held on Monday 18 September 
2017 be received and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting, including 
such parts taken with the public excluded.  

CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Twizel Community Board Meeting Minutes 30 October 2017 

Page 188 

7.4 TWIZEL COMMUNITY BOARD MATTERS UNDER ACTION 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/115  

Moved: Norman Geary 
Seconded: Pat Shuker 

That the information be noted.  

CARRIED 

 
Date Target Date Subject Actioned 

Required By 

6 June   Manmade Hill Gate: The Community Board agreed 
a gate would be required and a key from the Council 
office to gain access. A pathway would be 
constructed for disabled persons.  

Mr Nixon 

6 June Works 
approved  

Astroturfing Tennis Courts:  Mr Nixon said works 
would be completed before the 14th of November, 
weather allowing. Mr Nixon said options were being 
discussed regarding fencing. 

Mr Nixon  

6 June Ongoing Town Projects List: 

 Market Place Completion – Cr Hannagan felt 
the cost of $400,000 was extravagant. Mr 
Nixon said this had been a costing only and 
required feedback. Mr Paardekooper 
suggested Community Board members and 
Business Owners discuss other options. Mr 
Geary asked for an itemised quote to 
investigate possible options.  The Board 
asked that the wheelchair access be made a 
priority and temporary options discussed.  

 Water of Sports Fields – Cr Hannagan spoke 
to BOT Chairman he said a cost of $200,000 
had been expected if sinking of a bore and 
watering would be required. Mr 
Paardekooper noted the School had paid 
$15,000 on water rates and he would like to 
speak with School. The Town Manager 
would liaise with BOT and Board members 
to discuss further.  

 Tennis Court Resurfacing. 

 Theatre Seats – A report would be provided 
for the next Community Board meeting 
regarding seating options and costings.    

 Swimming Pool Upgrade – Mr Nixon 
reported the upgrade was progressing. 
Whitestone’s were cleaning the pool and 

Mr Nixon  
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filters would be installed. Mr Nixon reported 
14 November would be the planned 
opening day for the season.  

 Removal of dead trees around the School 

would be undertaken.   

6 June Ongoing Correspondence Follow up From Previous 
Meeting: 

Update required regarding:  

 Policing Rules and Regulations – Freedom 
Camping. Mr Nixon reported interviews 
were taking place.  

 Twizel Skate Park – Mr Nixon would write to 

Mr Power confirming the Community 

Board’s support and the corporation’s plans. 

 Pensioner Housing upkeep is ongoing. 

Waiting list is in place.  

Mr Nixon 

6 June ongoing Town Clock:  Town Temperature Clock to be 
installed in Market Place; Ms Taylor reported the 
favoured option was not viable and that another 
clock had been ordered costing $650.  

Ms Taylor 

6 June Ongoing Whitestone Grant:  The Community board agreed 
the $5,000 grant received from Whitestone 
Contracting limited would be spent on Man Made 
Hill improvements, signage, seats or replanting 
work. Mr Nixon will provide a report to the next 
Community Board meeting outlining options.   

Community Board 

1 May  7 August Future of Wood Chipper:  The Community Board 
sought clarification regarding sale of the Chipper 
and a tender process if required. 

The Mayor reported a tender process would be 
required.  

Mrs Shuker reported a Worksafe certificate would 
not be required for use. 

The Chair asked for a report regarding wood 
chipper options.  

Mr Nixon 

7 August 2017  Twizel Planning Documents: A meeting would take 
place on 21 November 2017 at 5:00pm.  

 

  Market Place Litter Bins: Ms Taylor reported bin 
removal had been successful and signage had been 
ordered. 

 

  Dust Suppressants Trial/ Ben Ohau Road: The 
Mayor reported the item would be discussed at 
Council meeting on 31 October 2017.  
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  Town Water Supply: Mr Nixon reported he would 
ask the Asset Department to provide the 
Information required regarding water pump usage 
via email.  

 

 
 

7.5 TWIZEL COMMUNITY BOARD FINANCIAL REPORT SEPTEMBER 2017 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/116  

Moved: Norman Geary 
Seconded: Pat Shuker 

That the report be received and information noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Nixon spoke to the report.  
 

MOTION 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/117  

Moved: Mr Luke Paardekooper 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

That the Twizel Community Board ask Council to pay the $3,300 from the reserve fund account 
to pay for playground equipment. 

CARRIED 

 
The Community Board asked if Council would consider payment for the replacement of a spinner 
bowl for the playground at a total cost of $3,300.00.  
 
The Community Board asked for further information regarding itinerant trader’s fee charges. The 
Chair asked for a report for the next Community Board meeting.  
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7.6 RM170128 - PLACEMENT OF A GARAGE WITHIN BOUNDARY SETBACKS - 19 FRASER 
CRESENT, TWIZEL 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For the Community Board to consider a request for affected person approval (under Section 95E 
of the Resource Management Act 1991) concerning a resource consent application from K. A. 
Marshall for a proposed garage at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel. 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/118  

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Luke Paardekooper 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/119  

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

2. That the Twizel Community Board recommend to Council that affected person approval be 
provided with regard to resource consent application RM170128 to erect a garage with 
reduced boundary setbacks at 19 Fraser Crescent, Twizel.    

CARRIED 

 

Ms Blyth spoke to the report. 
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7.7 TWIZEL COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 2018 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For the Twizel Community Board to adopt the Twizel Community Board meeting schedule for 
2018.  

COMMUNITY BOARD RECOMMENDATION    

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Luke Paardekooper 

1. That the report be received. 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/120  

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Pat Shuker 

2. That the Twizel Community Board 2018 meeting schedule be adopted.  

CARRIED 

 

TWIZEL COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 2018  

Monday 29 January 2018 – Start time 5:00pm public forum 5:00pm 

Monday 12 March 2018 - Start time 5:00pm public forum 5:00pm 

Monday 23 April 2018 - Start time 5:00pm public forum 5:00pm 

Monday 11 June 2018 (Monday 4 June is Queens Birthday) – time to be confirmed 

Monday 30 July 2018 – time to be confirmed 

Monday 10 September 2018 – time to be confirmed 

Monday 29 October 2018 (Monday 22 October is Labour Day) – time to be confirmed 

Monday 3 December 2018 – time to be confirmed 

INFORMATION TO NOTE: 
 
The Twizel Community Board requests a three month trial period of a 5:00pm meeting start time 
with the public forum starting at 5:00pm, this has been indicated above.  
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7.8 GENERAL BUSINESS/ INFORMATION UPDATE 

COMMUNITY BOARD RESOLUTION  TWCB/2017/121  

Moved: Chair 
Seconded: Pat Shuker 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

The Twizel Community Board had requested an update on the following matters.  

 

1. Water pooling/ stone barrier carpark area by the Mackenzie Four Square and Mackenzie 

District Council Office and Information Centre.  

 

Mr Nixon reported work would be completed before Christmas. The Community Board asked 

that a breakdown of work be explained and if works could not be completed before 1 

December 2017, then deferred to the New Year.  

 

2. Twizel Tidy up – Any property to be removed from outside property boundaries and 

cleared, no property to be left on Community land i.e. alley ways, green ways and outside 

fences. 

 

Mr Nixon highlighted the Council’s Reserve policy. He said he would carry out positive 

correspondence, notifications and enforcement on the issues raised if required.  

 

Mr Paardekooper asked for a reminder to residence regarding the mowing of empty sections 

be distributed. He asked that the orange cones be removed from around the waste station 

and a permanent structure be erected.  

 

3. Wi-Fi in Market place – follow up discussion from correspondence. 

 

The Twizel Community Board agreed to review options in regards to supplying Wi-Fi to the 

market place and to explore costs with a commercial entity.  

 

Cr Hannagan said further investigations would be required and could be too complex for 

Council. He suggested receiving buy in from the School and businesses regarding free Wi-Fi 

and a positive step forward. Cr Hannagan said he would speak to the school and business 

owners to gauge interest.  
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4. North West Arch fence vegetation problem. 

 

Mrs Shuker reported a hedge had grown through a joint fence line boundary with Council 

and a Residence.  

 

Mr Nixon noted it would be the neighbour’s responsibility to mitigate the problem and asked 

if discussions with the neighbour had occurred.  

 

Mrs Shuker confirmed the neighbour had not been approached regarding the overgrown 

hedge.  

 

Mr Nixon would confirm the property owner and discuss hedge cutting.  

  

5. Low Boulevard type lighting when replacing old poles within Twizel. 

 

Mr Paardekooper reported Council had a requirement for low lighting to accommodate the 

dark sky. He asked if the LED replacement had been compliant with the dark sky regulations 

and if discussion with the Dark Sky Board had taken place.   

 

Cr Munro confirmed regulations regarding lighting requirements had been discussed with 

Council and all Twizel lights comply with regulations. 

 

Mr Nixon reported he would discuss requirements with the Asset Team. 

 

Mr Nixon said replacing old poles within Twizel with the low boulevard type lighting would 

not be possible. He said there is no in ground street light circuit to attach to, no kerb to 

protect from vehicles and double up of the lights from those on poles would be required.  

 

6. Rata Road and Totara Drive Undeveloped Greenway Dumping: 

Mrs Shuker provided a picture of slash that had been left on an undeveloped greenway. Mr 
Nixon replied the slash had been moved to the area and discussion of options of removal 
were being discussed.  
 

7. Riverwalk Way: 

 

Mr Nixon said he would investigate Mrs Shuker concerns regarding a dirt fill blocking the 

river channel. He noted the fill had been Environment Canterbury works. 

 
8. Fill on Farmers Land: 

 

Mrs Shuker reported dirt fill had been dumped down the bank into the canals. 
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The Chair recommended an ad in the Update to notify people of the clean fill dump available 

at the Recovery Park.  

 
9. Two Thumb Drive Parking: 

 

The Chair had asked Mr Bayliss from Meridian Energy to attend an interim meeting to discuss 

Meridian Energy staff parking in the public carparks.  

 

The Chair suggested no stopping lines outside the Mobile Service Station next to the post 

office mailbox.  

 

10. Spraying Required: 

 

The Community Board had asked spraying to take place in several areas. Mr Nixon replied 
spraying was underway.  
 
Mr Nixon said the spraying is underway.  
 

11. Signage for Long Vehicle Parking: 

 

The Board noted long vehicle parking signage needed to be clearer to direct visitors to the 

appropriate parking.  

 

Ms Taylor would investigate options.   

 

7.9 WARD MEMBERS REPORT/ REPORT FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

Cr Hannagan reported on the last Council meeting, Planning and LTP workshops. He noted he had 
met with several residence to discuss several issues. He noted the dates for free dumping of tree 
limbs would be on the 18th and 25th of November. 
 
The Chair reported she was a member of the Community Care Trust. She noted the Trust had 
recently interviewed for a new Community Care Worker.  
 

The Meeting closed at 5:48PM. 

 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Twizel Community Board Meeting held on 4 
December 2017. 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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10 RECEIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

10.1 MINUTES OF FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 9 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 

Author: Arlene Goss, Committee Administrator (Temp)  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Finance Committee Meeting - 9 November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting held on Thursday 9 November 2017 
be received.  
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
EXTRAORDINARY FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE 
ON THURSDAY, 9 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 9:36AM 

 

PRESENT: Cr Russell Armstrong (Councillor), Cr Stuart Barwood (Councillor), Cr Chris 
Clarke (Councillor), Cr James Leslie (Councillor)(Deputy Mayor), Mayor Graham 
Smith (Mayor) (Chair) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Suzette van Aswegen (Planning and Regulations Manager) Toni Morrison 
(Projects and Administration Manager) Katherine Hill (Senior Policy Planner) 
Paul Morris (Chief Financial Officer) Ryan O’Sullivan, Greg Anderson, Bruce 
Anderson, Maureen McColl, Andrew Anderson 

 

1 OPENING  

The Mayor welcomed everyone to the meeting. He said the meeting would be informal but a 
structure would be required, ten minutes would be allowed for each submitter and question time 
would be to seek clarification only, no debate or discussion would be permitted. He added 
deliberations and decision making would be conducted at a meeting on the 23rd of November 2017.  

 

2 APOLOGIES  

APOLOGY 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/44  

Moved: Cr Stuart Barwood 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That apologies be received from the Chief Executive Officer, Cr Anne Munro and Cr Paul Hannagan 
be accepted. 

CARRIED 

 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

The Mayor delcared an interest as member of the Fairlie Golf Club.  

Cr Barwood delared an interest as a member of the Fairlie Golf Club and Fairlie Bowling Club.  
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4 REPORTS 

 

4.1 SUBMISSIONS TO PROPOSED FINANCIAL POLICIES 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To receive and hear submissions to the proposed Policy on Development Contributions and 
Financial Contributions, proposed Revenue and Financing Policy, and the Proposed Rates 
Remission and Rates Postponement Policies. 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/45  

Moved: Mayor Graham Smith 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/46  

Moved: Mayor Graham Smith 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

2. That Council receives the following submissions to the proposed Policy on Development 
Contributions and Financial Contributions: 

(a) S. Sweney; 

(b) L. Martin; 

(c) M. Cox; and 

(d) W. & Z. Speck. 

3. That Council receives the submission to the proposed Revenue and Financing Policy from 
W. & Z. Speck. 

4. That Council receives the following submissions to the Proposed Rates Remission and Rates 
Postponement Policies: 

(a) G. Anderson; 

(b) B. Anderson; and 

(c) A. Anderson. 

5. That Council hears from those submitters who wish to speak to their submissions on the 
above. 

CARRIED 
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Mackenzie Rugby Football Club – Proposed Rates Remission and Postponement Policies: 
 
The Mayor welcomed Greg Anderson and Ryan O’Sullivan. 
 
Mr Anderson spoke to his submission on behalf of the Mackenzie Rugby Football Club and the 
proposed rates remission and postponement policies. Mr Anderson’s submission was number 1 of 
the submissions on proposed policies handout.  
 
Mr Anderson added Touch, the Rugby Club, Squash Club and Cricket Club all used the Park. He noted 
the Netball Club had also participated in use of the Facility for a combined prizegiving and break up 
with the Rugby Club. Mr Anderson reported Forsyth Bar Stadium in Dunedin received a 90% 
dispensation on rates from the Dunedin City Council.  
 
Mr O’Sullivan distributed a recent statement of the Clubs finances and noted bar takings over the 
last four years had declined. He said extra income received via fundraising events held had been 
spent on improving the experience and costs of holding such events. He noted electricity costs, 
repairs and maintenace and insurance for players had also increased and if trends continuted to 
grow, he questioned the future viability of the Club.  
 
Mr O’Sullivan said the liquor licence had not created a substantial income and that player subs were 
already high, the Club did not want to approach players or sponsors for a higher contribution. He 
noted sponsors already contributed via rating of their private homes, businesses and farms while 
providing sponsorship.   
 
Questions: 
 
Cr Barwood highlighted Council pay for the upkeep and mowing of Strathconan Park.  
 
Mr O’Sullivan said the upkeep and mowing of the Park would be something the Club would be happy 
to discuss. He added the Club relied on volunteer work and the Club could investigate how upkeep 
and mowing could be completed at a cheaper rate. He did state that the Park was a community 
asset and used by the Community not just the Rugby Club.   
 
Mr O’Sullivan added the valuation of $780,000 received first had included the whole complex and 
changing rooms. He noted this had been reassessed and updated.  
 
Cr Clarke said Council must be consistent and fair. He asked Mr O’Sullivan for clarification if the Club 
felt the excemption should be made for all sporting Clubs or only Clubs relying on volunteers.  
 
Mr Anderson replied a different structure should be implemented for Clubs that are not the 
landowners.  
 
Mr Anderson reported the rating of licence presmises areas had been adopted for City Clubs that 
use their bar as a Hotel.  
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Fairlie Bowling Club – Proposed Rates Remission and Postponement Policies:  
 
The Mayor welcomed Bruce Anderson to the meeting. Mr Anderson’s submission was number 2 of 
the submissions on proposed policies handout.  
 
Mr Anderson read his submission. He added the current rates bill was $1697.00 a year which 
included Environment Canterbury rates. He noted a high majority of current Fairlie Bowling Club 
members were already ratepayers.   
 
Mr Anderson reported the matter had remained unresolved for two years and he would expect a 
resolution soon. He felt dissapointed an invitation to attend discussions with the whole council 
during workshops had not been extended to the Fairlie Bowling Club committee members. 
 
The Mayor repled workshop discussion had resulted in the review of the rate, a consultation process 
occuring and today’s hearing being held.  
 
Fairlie Golf Club – Proposed Rates Remission and Postponement Policies: 
 
The Mayor welcomed Andrew Anderson to the meeting. Mr Anderson’s submission was number 3 
within the proposed policies handout.  
 
He reported the Fairlie Golf Club supported the submissions of both the Mackenzie Rugby Club and 
the Fairlie Bowling Club.  
 
He added the Fairlie Golf Club land could not be sold for profit, the proceeds would be required for 
donation or establishment of a likewise organisation.  
 
Mr Anderson reported the Club had 200 full members which was made up of 28 Farmer’s each 
paying over $100,000 in property rates, 50 house owners each paying in excess of $75,000 of rates. 
He noted 10% of the sub paid by members already contributed to rates, with a 50% rebate on non 
licence portion.  
 
Mr Anderson reported the Club currently paid $3000 annually in rates or $4100.00 if a full rate 
would be requried. He added Farms generating a $200,000 gross income were charged $3300.00 in 
rates annually. 
 
He highlighted the Club contributed to a water race the Club could not use, it was charged for 
stormwater discharge which was discharged onto the Golf Course itself, the Club did intend to 
construct a dam for irrigation to relieve pressure from the Town supply. He confirmed the Club 
mowed Talbot Street Road sides with no cost to Council.   
 
Mr Anderson stated The Fairlie Golf Club requests Council to assess the amount charged to Sports 
Clubs.  
 
Questions: 
 
Cr Barwood asked if the Club felt it fair to charge businesses higher rates to cover less rate charges 
for Clubs.   
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Mr Anderson replied if sporting body’s were charged to heavily, then members would be effectivley 
paying rates twice.  
 
Walter and Zita Speck – Proposed Development Contributions and Financial Contributions Policy; 
and Proposed Revenue and Financing Policy: 
 
The Mayor welcome Walter Speck to the meeting and invited him to address Council. Mr Speck’s 
submission was number 4 in the submissions on proposed policies document.  
 
Mr Speck read his submission.  
 
Questions: 
 
The Mayor asked if Council moved away from capital value rating to non capital value rating would 
that result in only land value and improvements being the source of rating valuation. 
 
Mr Speck noted it was currently too hard for a Family to purchase a home in Tekapo and therefore 
the Community had been excluded from the Town.  
 
At 10:20 a.m., Cr Russell Armstrong left the meeting. 

At 10:28 a.m., Cr Russell Armstrong returned to the meeting. 

 

5 ADJOURNMENTS   

There were no adjournments.  

 

The Meeting closed at 10:30AM. 

 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Finance Committee Meeting held on 23 
November 2017.  

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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10.2 MINUTES OF FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 23 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 

Author: Arlene Goss, Committee Administrator (Temp)  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Finance Committee Meeting - 23 November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting held on Thursday 23 November 2017 
be received.  
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE 
ON THURSDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 9:54AM 

 

PRESENT: Cr Russell Armstrong (Councillor), Cr Stuart Barwood (Councillor), Cr Chris 
Clarke (Councillor), Cr Paul Hannagan (Councillor), Cr James Leslie (Deputy 
Mayor), Cr Anne Munro (Councillor), Mayor Graham Smith (Mayor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:   Suzette van Aswegen (Chief Executive Officer) Paul Morris (Chief Financial 
Officer) Toni Morrison (Projects and Administration Manager) Kate Grant 
(Committee Administrator) Katherine Hill (Senior Corporate Planner), Megan 
Sutherland (Timaru Herald Reporter) Garth Nixon (Community Facilities 
Manager) Jason Gaskill (Alps to Ocean) 

 

1 OPENING  

The Mayor welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

 

2 APOLOGIES  

There were no apologies.  

 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

Cr Clarke declared a conflict of interest regarding agenda item 6.3 and abstained from voting. 

 

4 VISITORS   

Jason Gaskill (Alps to Ocean) 

Mr Gaskill explained that he is stepping down from his role with Alps to Ocean but there will be no 
major change to the original business plan. Jason advised that current financial agreements with 
councils end at the end of this financial year. Jason expressed that Alps to Ocean wish to keep lines 
of communication open to address arising issues.  

The Mayor thanked Mr Gaskill for his work. 
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5 REPORTS 

6.1 RATES REMISSION AND POSTPONEMENT POLICIES 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To consider submissions to the proposed Rates Remission and Rates Postponement Policies, make 
any changes resulting from deliberations and adopt the Rates Remission and Rates Postponement 
Policies. 

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/47  

Moved: Cr Stuart Barwood 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/48  

Moved: Cr Stuart Barwood 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

 

2. That the Committee accept the submissions received to the proposed Rates Remission and 
Rates Postponement Policies, and instruct staff to change sub-clause 1 of clause 1 of the 
Rates Remission Policy to remove the wording “excluding clubs holding licences for the 
purposes of the sale of liquor”. 

 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/49  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

3. That the Committee adopt the Rates Remission and Rates Postponement Policies, subject 
 to the  change outlined in resolution 2. 

 

CARRIED 
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COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/50  

Moved: Cr Stuart Barwood 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

4.     That the Committee set up a workshop with submitters regarding Strathconan Park.  
 

CARRIED 

 
 
Ms Morrison spoke to the report. 
 
Cr Barwood expressed his support for the submissions received and stated that it is important for 
the community to keep these clubs alive. 
  
At 09:59 a.m., Cr Russell Armstrong left the meeting. 

At 10:03 a.m., Cr Russell Armstrong returned to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

6.2 DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS POLICY 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To consider and deliberate on submissions to the proposed Policy on Development Contributions 
and Financial Contributions, and adopt the Policy on Development Contributions and Financial 
Contributions. 

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/51  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/52  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

2. That the Committee does not accept submissions received to the proposed Policy on 
Development Contributions and Financial Contributions. 

 

CARRIED 
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COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/53  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

3. That the Committee adopt the Policy on Development Contributions and Financial 
Contributions without amendment. 

 

CARRIED 

 

Ms Hill spoke to the report. 
 
The Mayor asked if Council should move to the Development Contribution system before it needed 
to be implemented in year 2020. Ms Hill stated that we need to undertake research before we adopt 
the new system so that we ensure we are implementing it properly.  
 
Council is to write to the submitter to thank them for their submission and to explain the reason 
that the Committee cannot amend the policy as sought. 
 

6.3 TWIZEL VEHICLE TRUST GARAGES REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDING 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To consider a request from the Twizel Tekapo Communities Vehicle Trust Garage Project. 

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/54  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/55  

2.     That Council seek further information from the trust to come to some other 
funding  arrangement. 

In Favour: Crs Stuart Barwood, Paul Hannagan, Anne Munro and Graham Smith 

Against: Cr James Leslie 

Abstained: Crs Russell Armstrong and Chris Clarke 

 

 
 

CARRIED 
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Mr Nixon spoke to the report. 
 
Cr Munro questioned how the trust planned to fund the overspend if Council were to decline their 
request for additional funding. Mr Nixon explained that they were not willing to disclose that when 
asked. 
 
Cr Clarke declared a conflict of interest and stated that he will abstain from the vote. 
 

6.4 REVENUE AND FINANCING POLICY 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To consider and deliberate on submissions to the proposed Revenue and Financing Policy, make 
any changes resulting from deliberations and adopt the Revenue and Financing Policy subject to 
any required changes being made, should they be considered appropriate. 

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/56  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Russell Armstrong 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/57  

Moved: Cr Paul Hannagan 
Seconded: Cr James Leslie 

2. That the Committee receive the submission and adopt the Revenue and Financing Policy 
without change. 

CARRIED 

 

 

Ms Morrison spoke to the report. 
 
Mr Morris stated that moving to land value rating would have a big impact on larger land owners. 
Mr Morris also stated that capital value rating is the most practical system to administer. 
 
Council is to write to the submitter to thank them for their input and to explain that while the 
Committee is not changing the policy, the submission raised many interesting maters. 
 
The Mayor asked staff to congratulate the submitters on their excellent submission and 
presentation. 
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6.5 FINANCIAL REPORT SEPTEMBER 2017 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The Financial report for Council for the period ending September 2017.  

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/58  

Moved: Cr Stuart Barwood 
Seconded: Cr Russell Armstrong 

1. That the report be received and information noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Morris spoke to the report. 
 
At 10:52 a.m., Cr Russell Armstrong left the meeting. 

At 10:56 a.m., Cr Russell Armstrong returned to the meeting. 

 

6.6 MINUTES OF TEKAPO PROPERTY GROUP SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING - 24 OCTOBER 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/59  

Moved: Cr James Leslie 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Tekapo Property Group Subcommittee Meeting held on Tuesday 
24 October 2017 be received.  

 

CARRIED 

 

 

6.7 MINUTES OF EXTRAORDINARY FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 9 NOVEMBER 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/60  

Moved: Cr James Leslie 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Extraordinary Finance Committee Meeting held on Thursday 9 
November 2017 be received and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

CARRIED 
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6.8 MINUTES OF FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 3 OCTOBER 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/61  

Moved: Cr James Leslie 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 3 October 2017 be 
received and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting. 

CARRIED 

 

   

4 ADJOURNMENTS   

There were no adjournments. 

5 PUBLIC EXCLUDED  

RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  FIN/2017/62  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting. 

The general subject matter of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the 
reason for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under 
section 48 of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of 
this resolution are as follows: 

General subject of each matter 
to be considered 

Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each 
matter 

Ground(s) under section 48 for 
the passing of this resolution 

8.1 - Minutes of Public Excluded 
Tekapo Property Group 
Subcommittee Meeting - 24 
October 2017 

s7(2)(b)(ii) - the withholding of 
the information is necessary to 
protect information where the 
making available of the 
information would be likely 
unreasonably to prejudice the 
commercial position of the 
person who supplied or who is 
the subject of the information 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
enable Council to carry out, 
without prejudice or 
disadvantage, commercial 
activities 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 
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CARRIED 

 

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION    

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr James Leslie 

That Council moves out of Closed Council into Open Council. 

   

   

The Meeting closed at 11:10am. 

 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Finance Committee Meeting held on 16 
January 2018. 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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10.3 MINUTES OF ASSETS AND SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING - 23 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 

Author: Arlene Goss, Committee Administrator (Temp)  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Assets and Services Committee Meeting - 23 November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Assets and Services Committee Meeting held on Thursday 23 
November 2017 be received. 
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
ASSETS AND SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE 
ON THURSDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 11:32AM 

 

PRESENT: Cr Russell Armstrong (Councillor), Cr Barwood Stuart Barwood (Councillor), Cr 
Chris Clarke (Councillor), Cr Paul Hannagan (Councillor), Cr James Leslie (Deputy 
Mayor), Cr Anne Munro (Councillor), Cr Graham Smith (Mayor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Suzette van Aswegen (Chief Executive Officer) Bernie Haar (Asset Manager) 
Toni Morrison (Projects and Administration Manager) Scott McKenzie (Roading 
Manager) Geoff Horler (Utilities Manager) Angie Taylor (Solid Waste Manager) 
Kate Grant (Committee Administrator) Megan Sutherland (Timaru Herald 
Reporter) Rob Young and Bruce Mincham  

 

1 OPENING  

Chair Cr Barwood welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

2 APOLOGIES  

There were no apologies 

 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.   

 

4 VISITORS   

Rob Young and agenda items 6.4 and 6.5. 

5 MATTERS ARISING 

Cr Munro noted that the Lake Tekapo Waste Disposal costing figures were in the previous minutes 
as requiring a report to this meeting, but no such report had been provided. Mr Haar added that 
they weren’t making progress with their consultant Beca therefore Mr Horler has ended their 
contract. Mr Horler is now driving the project and work is well underway. Mr Horler added that the 
pump purchased cost approximately $5,000.00 but there are no current costings on earthworks and 
pipeline at this stage. Mr Horler advised that they are working hard to keep the costs down while 
ensuring that the works are still fit for purpose.  

The Mayor expressed concerns about time and money wasted on the consultants when we could 
have managed it in-house from the start. 
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6 REPORTS 

6.1 MINUTES OF ASSETS AND SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING - 3 OCTOBER 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/39  

Moved: Cr Graham Smith 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the Minutes of the Assets and Services Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 3 
October 2017 be received and adopted a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

CARRIED 

 

 

6.2 ASSET MANAGER'S MONTHLY REPORT 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/40  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Russell Armstrong 

1. That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Haar spoke to the report. 
 
Mr Haar stated that the submission period for the Notice of Requirement application for the Twizel 
Waste Water Treatment Plant upgrade had closed with one submission being received which was 
neutral. This should result in the decision being issued shortly which will allow for work to begin 
early 2018. 
 
Cr Barwood questioned the stormwater infiltration issues. Mr Horler stated that they have 
completed a smoke testing survey at Lake Tekapo which revealed broken laterals and gully traps 
which is what is allowing storm water into the systems. Mr Horler added that a solution is yet to be 
decided. 
 
Cr Clarke asked about the ongoing issues regarding the Twizel water supply. Mr Horler responded 
that the recent failure relating to the new equipment was unfortunate and unforeseen and that this 
equipment is working well otherwise. The other recent failures were due to old existing equipment 
failing which has been rectified and lessons have been learnt. 
 
Cr Hannagan asked that Whitestone be thanked for their prompt response to the recent water 
supply interruption in Twizel. He expressed concern that there was a delay in advising people on 
Councils Facebook page and that Council needs to reassure people and provide prompt information. 
 
The Mayor expressed frustration in the delay from New Zealand Transport Agency in responding to 
their visit and questions to them from the Mayor. 
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Mr McKenzie stated that they have installed five culverts along Mt Cook Station Road to prevent 
further erosion damage to the road. 
 
Cr Leslie requested a summary of submissions received regarding the transport consultation which 
closes 1st December 2017. Mr Haar responded advising that Abley consultants will be making a 
presentation on the results to the Tekapo Community Board on 13th December 2017 and that he 
would provide information to Council as a part of that. 
 
Cr Hannagan asked if there has been a change in water pressure for the Twizel scheme. Mr Horler 
explained that the pressure is being affected by high usage rates.  
 
Cr Munro requested temporary signage to be displayed around the temporary walkway at Lake 
Tekapo to warn motorists of pedestrians. 
 
The Mayor questioned whether or not the rotten rock trial has been completed. Mr Haar confirmed 
that the various rock sources are still being trialled. He added that the Aorangi Downs source is 
performing very well but they have had a few issues with the Clayton Station material. 
 
Mr McKenzie indicated that they have found a possible rotten rock source up country which they 
are still investigating. 
 
Ms Taylor provided an update on Solid Waste. Cr Clarke raised issues regarding inconsistent charge 
rates at Council waste sites. Ms Taylor confirmed that staff have been provided further training to 
rectify this issue. 

6.3 ROADING REPORT 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

Unsealed shoulders on the section of Regent Street from Main Street (State Highway 8) to Bank 
Street, Fairlie was raised as an issue by the Fairlie Community Board and a resolution was put to 
Council recommending to seal these to provide additional parking for the town as well as to limit 
dust nuisance for the residents along this section. The existing seal is approximately 5.6m wide. 

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/41  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/42  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 



Assets and Services Committee Meeting Minutes 23 November 2017 

Page 219 

4. That the Committee decline the Community Board’s resolution and leave the road as is, but 
 the Committee will progress angle parking on Grey Street in consultation with the 
 Community Board and residents as a matter of urgency. 

CARRIED 

 

 

Mr McKenzie spoke to the report. 
 
Cr Clarke stated that Council need to decide what the long term use for parking in the Fairlie 
township will be used for and how it should look but stated that the community is getting frustrated 
that nothing is being done about addressing the lack of parking. 
 
Cr Munro felt that the Committee should acknowledge the Community Boards frustration and noted 
that an action should come out of this Committee meeting. 
 

6.4 ALPS TO OCEAN EAST PUKAKI PRESENTATION 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/43  

Moved: Cr Paul Hannagan 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Young spoke to and provided a presentation on the Eastern Section of the Alps to Ocean cycle 
trail. 
 

6.5 LAKE ALEXANDRINA MANAGEMENT PLAN OPTIONS 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For Council to consider how to progress matters surrounding the future management planning 
around Lake Alexandrina. 

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/44  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/45  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
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Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

2. That the Committee proceed with Option 3 – A Summary of Issues and an Action Plan – 
Limited Consultation for Information Gathering only. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Young and Mr Nixon spoke to the report.   
 
Mr Young suggested Option 3 would be the best way forward. He stated that a management plan 
isn’t necessarily required and will take time and money due to consultation and it may not produce 
a different result to what will come out of Option 3. 
 
Mr Young was asked about timing for delivering the report. He indicated due to other workload it 
may be the middle of 2018. 
 

4 ADJOURNMENTS   

 

5 PUBLIC EXCLUDED  

RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/46  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting. 

The general subject matter of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the 
reason for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under 
section 48 of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of 
this resolution are as follows: 

General subject of each matter 
to be considered 

Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each 
matter 

Ground(s) under section 48 for 
the passing of this resolution 

8.1 - Twizel Water Main 
Renewal 2017/18 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
enable Council to carry out, 
without prejudice or 
disadvantage, commercial 
activities 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 

8.2 - Fairlie Water Main Renewal 
2017/18 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
enable Council to carry out, 
without prejudice or 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
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disadvantage, commercial 
activities 

which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 

 

CARRIED 

 

 

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  ASC/2017/47  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Russell Armstrong 

That Council moves out of Closed Council into Open Council. 

CARRIED 

   

   

The Meeting closed at 1:25pm. 

 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Assets and Services Committee Meeting held 
on 16 January 2018. 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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10.4 MINUTES OF PLANNING AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING - 23 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 

Author: Arlene Goss, Committee Administrator (Temp)  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Planning and Regulations Committee Meeting - 23 
November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Planning and Regulations Committee Meeting held on Thursday 
23 November 2017 be received. 
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
PLANNING AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE 
ON THURSDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 1:45PM 

 

PRESENT: Cr Russell Armstrong (Councillor), Cr Stuart Barwood (Councillor), Cr Chris 
Clarke (Councillor), Cr Paul Hannagan (Councillor), Cr James Leslie (Deputy 
Mayor), Cr Anne Munro (Councillor), Mayor Graham Smith (Mayor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Suzette van Aswegen (Chief Executive Officer) Karina Morrow (Planning 
Manager) Toni Morrison (Projects and Administration Manager) Kate Grant 
(Committee Administrator) Megan Sutherland (Timaru Herald Reporter) Phil 
Mackay (Emergency Management Officer) 

 

1 OPENING  

Chair Cr Munro welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

2 APOLOGIES  

There were no apologies. 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.  

4 VISITORS   

There were no visitors. 

5 REPORTS 

6.1 PLAN CHANGE 13 UPDATE 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To provide the Committee with an update as to the status of Proposed Plan Change 13 including 
the 11th and 12th decisions and the application for declaration as to the effect of Plan Change 13 
provisions.  

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  PRC/2017/37  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 
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Ms Morrow spoke to the report. 
 
The Mayor asked what the issues going forward will be. Ms Morrow stated there are a few minor 
issues to work through which are the rules around farm base areas and hazard inundation areas.  
 

6.2 MINUTES OF PLANNING AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING - 3 OCTOBER 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  PRC/2017/38  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Mayor Graham Smith 

1. That the Minutes of the Planning and Regulations Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 3 
October 2017 be received and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

CARRIED 

 

 

6.3 CIVIL DEFENCE & EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT REPORT 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  PRC/2017/39  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr James Leslie 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Ms Morrison spoke to the report. 
 
Ms Morrison stated that there are three main priorities over the next twelve months which are 
Council Readiness, Community Awareness and Resilience and assessing the Community Response 
Plan. 
 
Ms Morrison added that regular reports will be provided to the committee on Civil Defence 
Emergency Management. 
 
 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 2:05pm. 

The minutes of this meeting will be confirmed at the next Planning and Regulations Committee 
Meeting. 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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10.5 MINUTES OF AUDIT AND RISK SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING - 23 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: NA 

Author: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Audit and Risk Subcommittee Meeting - 23 November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Audit and Risk Subcommittee Meeting held on Thursday 23 
November 2017 be received. 
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE 
ON THURSDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 2:07PM 

 

PRESENT: Cr Russell Armstrong (Councillor), Cr Stuart Barwood (Councillor), Cr Chris 
Clarke (Councillor), Cr Paul Hannagan (Councillor), Cr Leslie James Leslie 
(Deputy Mayor), Cr Anne Munro (Councillor), Cr Graham Smith (Mayor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Suzette van Aswegen (Chief Executive Officer) Paul Morris (Chief Financial 
Officer) Toni Morrison (Projects and Administration Manager) Kate Grant 
(Committee Administrator) Bruce Mincham (Independent Member) 

 

1 OPENING  

Chair Cr Leslie welcomed everyone to the meeting including new committee member Bruce 
Mincham. 

2 APOLOGIES  

There were no apologies. 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.  

4 VISITORS   

There were no visitors. 

5 REPORTS 

6.1 MINUTES OF AUDIT AND RISK SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING - 22 AUGUST 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  AUD/2017/13  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Audit and Risk Subcommittee Meeting held on Tuesday 22 August 
2017 be received adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

CARRIED 
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6.2 HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  AUD/2017/14  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Ms Morrison spoke to the report. 
 
Ms Morrison stated that Council has purchased a software package to document all Health and 
Safety information.  
 
In response from Cr Leslie, Ms Morrison noted that the staff on the Health and Safety Committee 
recently met with all staff to provide information on the Employee Assistance Programme, so she 
believed there was good organisational awareness of that service offered by the Council. 
 

4 ADJOURNMENTS   

 

5 PUBLIC EXCLUDED  

RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  AUD/2017/15  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting. 

The general subject matter of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the 
reason for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under 
section 48 of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of 
this resolution are as follows: 

General subject of each matter 
to be considered 

Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each 
matter 

Ground(s) under section 48 for 
the passing of this resolution 

8.1 - Minutes of Public Excluded 
Audit and Risk Committee 
Meeting - 22 August 2017 

s7(2)(a) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
protect the privacy of natural 
persons, including that of 
deceased natural persons 

s7(2)(b)(ii) - the withholding of 
the information is necessary to 
protect information where the 
making available of the 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 
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information would be likely 
unreasonably to prejudice the 
commercial position of the 
person who supplied or who is 
the subject of the information 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
enable Council to carry out, 
without prejudice or 
disadvantage, commercial 
activities 

8.2 - Audit of the 2016/17 
Annual Report 

s7(2)(c)(i) - the withholding of 
the information is necessary to 
protect information which is 
subject to an obligation of 
confidence or which any person 
has been or could be compelled 
to provide under the authority of 
any enactment, where the 
making available of the 
information would be likely to 
prejudice the supply of similar 
information, or information from 
the same source, and it is in the 
public interest that such 
information should continue to 
be supplied 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 

 

CARRIED 

 

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  AUD/2017/16  

Moved: Cr Graham Smith 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

That Council moves out of Closed Council into Open Council. 

CARRIED 

   

   

The Meeting closed at 3:04pm. 

 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Audit and Risk Committee Meeting held on  . 

 

................................................... 
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CHAIRPERSON 
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10.6 MINUTES OF STRATEGY COMMITTEE MEETING - 23 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: NA 

Author: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Strategy Committee Meeting - 23 November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Strategy Committee Meeting held on Thursday 23 November 
2017 be received.  
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
STRATEGY COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE 
ON THURSDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 3:06PM 

 

PRESENT: Cr Russell Armstrong (Councillor), Cr Stuart Barwood (Councillor), Cr Chris 
Clarke (Councillor), Cr Paul Hannagan (Councillor), Cr James Leslie (Deputy 
Mayor), Cr Anne Munro (Councillor), Mayor Graham Smith (Mayor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Suzette van Aswegen (Chief Executive Officer) Toni Morrison (Projects and 
Administration Manager) and Kate Grant (Committee Administrator) Bruce 
Mincham until 3:18 

 

1 OPENING  

Chair Cr Leslie welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

2 APOLOGIES  

There were no apologies.  

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.  

4 VISITORS   

There were no visitors.  

5 MATTERS ARISING 

Cr Munro gained the permission of Chair Cr Leslie to table the Ageing Together Policy from 
Christchurch City Council which is to be discussed and considered at the next committee meeting. 

6 REPORTS 

6.1 MINUTES OF STRATEGY COMMITTEE MEETING - 22 AUGUST 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  STR/2017/11  

Moved: Mayor Graham Smith 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

1. That the Minutes of the Strategy Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 22 August 2017 be 
received and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

CARRIED 
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6.2 LONG TERM PLAN PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  STR/2017/12  

Moved: Cr Stuart Barwood 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Ms Morrison spoke to the report. 

Cr Leslie asked Ms Morrison if she is anticipating any difficulties collating the information needed to 
meet deadlines. Ms Morrison said staff have been working very hard on supplying the required 
information. 

The Mayor thanked Ms Morrison for all her work on this project so far. 

Cr Munro requested that staff be informed of how much Councillors are appreciating their hard 
work on this project. 

At 3:05 p.m., Cr Russell Armstrong left the meeting. 

At 3:08 p.m., Cr Russell Armstrong returned to the meeting. 

4 ADJOURNMENTS   

 

The Meeting closed at 3:20pm. 

 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Strategy Committee Meeting held on  . 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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10.7 MINUTES OF MACKENZIE FORESTRY BOARD MEETING - 23 NOVEMBER 2017 

File Reference: NA 

Author: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Mackenzie Forestry Board Meeting - 23 November 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Mackenzie Forestry Board Meeting held on Thursday 23 
November 2017 be received.  
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
MACKENZIE FORESTRY BOARD MEETING 

HELD AT THE FAIRLIE COMMUNITY CENTRE LOUNGE, FAIRLIE 
ON THURSDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 9:00AM 

 

PRESENT: Cr Stuart Barwood (Councillor), Cr Chris Clarke (Councillor), Cr Anne Munro 
(Councillor), Mayor Graham Smith (Mayor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Suzette van Aswegen (Chief Executive Officer) Paul Morris (Chief Financial 
Officer) from 9:02am Toni Morrison (Projects and Administration Manager) 
Kate Grant (Committee Administrator) Kevin O’Neill (Forest Manager) and 
Terry O’Neill (District Forester) from 9:17am 

 

1 OPENING  

The Mayor welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

2 APOLOGIES  

There were no apologies.  

 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.  

 

4 VISITORS   

There were no visitors.  

5 REPORTS 

6.1 MINUTES OF MACKENZIE FORESTRY BOARD MEETING - 22 AUGUST 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  MFB/2017/22  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Mackenzie Forestry Board Meeting held on Tuesday 22 August 
2017 be received and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

CARRIED 

 

 
Cr Munro thanked the board for the forestry tour which was beneficial. 
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6.2 FORESTRY MANAGER'S REPORT AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER 2017 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  MFB/2017/23  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Kevin O’Neill spoke to his report. 
 
Kevin O’Neill noted that there are possums present in the forestry doing some damage but numbers 
are low therefore they will undertake trapping next winter. 
  
Kevin O’Neill stated that trees have been thinned back from the tracks allowing them to be 
accessible again which will prevent further damage. Kevin also added that it’s worth considering 
putting gravel in the track ruts to prevent damage further. He will confirm costs before 
commissioning any work. 
 
Kevin O’Neill confirmed that they are 50% through carbon dating.  
 

6.3 UPDATE ON LOGGING AND THINNING OPERATIONS 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  MFB/2017/24  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  MFB/2017/25  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

2.  That the two tabled reports Simons Hill 2017 Harvest Update and Silvicultural Costs Report be 
received. 

CARRIED 

 

Terry O’Neill provided an update on the Simons Hill forestry block. Terry added that good financial 
gain has been due to the low figures used in original estimates, improved exchanged rates and lower 
shipping costs.  
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Terry O’Neill confirmed that approximately 50% of the plantation has been cut and that work should 
be completed within approximately two months into the new year which will exceed expectations. 
 
The Mayor raised concerns regarding the thinning budget. Terry O’Neill explained that they are 
using $600.00 per ha for thinning where only $550.00 per ha was budgeted. This is due to difficulties 
in accessing the area. Mr Morris stated that if extra funding is required for thinning that rates will 
not be affected.  
 
Terry O’Neill to review the broom issue at the Cave block. 
 

6.4 FORESTRY BOARD FINANCIAL REPORT SEPTEMBER 2017 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The Financial Report for the Mackenzie Forestry Board for the period ending September 2017.  

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  MFB/2017/26  

Moved: Cr Stuart Barwood 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the report be received and information noted. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Morris spoke to the report. 
 
The Mayor questioned why lease rental figures were under budget. Mr Morris to investigate but 
believed it could be due to the timing of Sam Bell’s lease and getting the agreement signed. 
 
Mr Morris added that the equity balance has increased from the last financial year. 
 
Cr Clarke asked when we will receive the Simons Hill forestry block payout. Kevin O’Neill responded 
stating that partial payments are being received at the end of each month. 
 
The Mayor added that he wants to see Council’s forests maintained to a high standard and that it is 
important that thinning is done. 
 
Cr Clarke asked for clarification around where the contribution back to Council is noted within the 
financial report. Mr Morris added that it sits within other income as a deficit. Committee members 
request for it to sit within a separate line for clarity. 
 

7 ADJOURNMENTS   

There were no adjournments. 
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8 PUBLIC EXCLUDED  

RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION  MFB/2017/27  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting. 

The general subject matter of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the 
reason for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under 
section 48 of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of 
this resolution are as follows: 

General subject of each matter 
to be considered 

Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each 
matter 

Ground(s) under section 48 for 
the passing of this resolution 

8.1 - Minutes of Public Excluded 
Mackenzie Forestry Board 
Meeting - 22 August 2017 

s7(2)(b)(ii) - the withholding of 
the information is necessary to 
protect information where the 
making available of the 
information would be likely 
unreasonably to prejudice the 
commercial position of the 
person who supplied or who is 
the subject of the information 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
enable Council to carry out, 
without prejudice or 
disadvantage, commercial 
activities 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 

 

CARRIED 

 

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION    

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

That Council moves out of Closed Council into Open Council. 

   

   

The Meeting closed at 9:34am. 
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The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Mackenzie Forestry Board Meeting held on 27 
February 2018. 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON 
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11 CONFIRM COUNCIL MINUTES 

11.1 MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING - 31 OCTOBER 2017 

File Reference: PAD 

Author: Arlene Goss, Committee Administrator (Temp)  

Authoriser: Toni Morrison, Projects & Administration Manager  

Attachments: 1. Minutes of Council Meeting - 31 October 2017    

  

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on Tuesday 31 October 2017 be received 
and the recommendations therein be adopted. 
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MINUTES OF MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE 
ON TUESDAY, 31 OCTOBER 2017 AT 9:40AM 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Graham Smith (Mayor), Deputy Mayor James Leslie (Deputy Mayor), Cr 
Russell Armstrong (Councillor), Cr Anne Munro (Councillor), Cr Stuart Barwood 
(Councillor), Cr Chris Clarke (Councillor), Cr Paul Hannagan (Councillor) 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Wayne Barnett (Chief Executive Officer) Suzette van Aswegen (Planning and 
Regulations Manager) Paul Morris (Chief Financial Officer) 12:17pm-12:25pm 
Toni Morrison (Administration and Projects Manager) Katherine Hill ( Senior 
Policy Planner) 12:17pm-12:25pm, Keri-Ann Andrews (Committee 
Administrator) Scott Mackenzie (Roading Manager) 11:38am-12:17pm 
Annabelle Bray, Jason Menard, Rowan Worner (ChristchurchNZ) from 10:09am 
to 11:04am, Barb Gilchrist (ECan Facilitator) from 11:05am to 11:38am, Megan 
Sutherland (Timaru Herald Reporter) left the meeting at 12:35pm 

 

1 OPENING  

The Mayor welcomed everyone to the final Council meeting for current Chief Executive Officer 
Wayne Barnett.  

The Mayor reported agenda item 8.4 Annual Report would be withdrawn from the agenda 
coincidently the Skype meeting scheduled with John Mackey Audit Director would be cancelled. He 
added the Audit for the Annual Report was still processing.  

The Mayor noted Bruce Mincham the newly appointed independent member of the Audit and Risk 
Committee would join Council for Morning Tea.  

 

2 APOLOGIES  

There were no apologies. 

 

3 VISITORS   

10:00am Annabelle Bray, Mackenzie Marketing Executive; Jason Menard, Mackenzie Digital 
Executive; Rowan Worner, ChristchurchNZ GM Marketing;  

10:45am Barb Gilchrist, Zone Facilitator Orari Temuka Opihi Pareora Zone Water Management 
Committee 

 

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest.  
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5 BEREAVEMENTS   

The Mayor noted the recent deaths of James Hastie, David Scott and Anne Scott.  

 

6 MAYOR'S REPORT 

6.1 MAYORAL ACTIVITIES REPORT 

RESOLUTION  2017/90  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Russell Armstrong 

That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

 

This report from the Mayor detailed recent meetings and events of note from the 20th of September 
to the 20th of October 2017.  
 
The Mayor reported the recent Zone 5 and 6 meeting he had attended with Cr Barwood provided 
discussion regarding the remuneration authority for elected members, tourist infrastructure and a 
freedom camping nationwide common policy.  
 

7 REPORTS 

8.1 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ACTIVITIES REPORT 

RESOLUTION  2017/91  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr James Leslie 

That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

 

Mr Barnett spoke to his report and noted four new staff appointments had occurred since the last 
Council meeting.   
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8.5 COUNCILMARK LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXCELLENT PROGRAMME 2017/18 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To seek approval for the Mackenzie District Council to participate in the CouncilMARKTM Local 
Government Excellence Programme (Programme).  

RESOLUTION  2017/92  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

RESOLUTION  2017/93  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr James Leslie 

2. That Council approves Mackenzie District Council’s registration of interest in the 
CouncilMARKTM Local Government Excellence Programme for Year 2 and 3. 

3. That Council approves the unbudgeted expenditure of $15,000 excluding GST and 
disbursements, for the CouncilMARKTM Excellence Programme for Year 2 and 3. 

CARRIED 

 
The Mayor reported he had instigated the inclusion of this report into today’s agenda. 
 
Ms van Aswegen spoke to the report.  
 
Cr Clarke expressed his support for the programme and added the information gained would be 
valuable for improving the organisation. 
 
Cr Munro asked if staff acceptance had been sought. 
 
Ms van Aswegen replied she had received acceptance of the programme from Senior Managers and 
would include further staff when appropriate.  
 
Cr Leslie noted feedback received from staff had indicated staff workloads were high and questioned 
resourcing to complete the review.  
 
Ms van Aswegen acknowledged the high level of work required but added the information provided 
would be valuable to Council.  
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8.2 CHRISTCHURCHNZ MACKENZIE TOURISM QUARTERLY MARKETING REPORT JULY 2017-
SEPTEMBER 2017 

RESOLUTION  2017/94  

Moved: Cr Paul Hannagan 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

The Mayor Annabelle Bray, Mackenzie Marketing Executive; Jason Menard, Mackenzie Digital 
Executive; Rowan Worner, ChristchurchNZ GM Marketing; Aleisha Duncan, ChristchurchNZ Online 
Manager to the meeting.  
 
 

8.3 ORARI TEMUKA OPIHI PAREORA ZONE WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ZIPA 
UPDATE 

RESOLUTION  2017/95  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

That the information be noted. 

CARRIED 

 

The Mayor welcomed Ms Gilchrist to the meeting. 
 
Ms Gilchrist explained the interim report and complications experienced regarding protecting 
waterways and the importance of water for the economic health of the District. 
 
Ms Gilchrist highlighted the proposed timeline included on page 19 of the agenda.  
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8.1 BEN OHAU ROAD DUST NUISANCE - LATE ITEM 

RESOLUTION  2017/96  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Cr James Leslie 

That the late item Ben Ohau Road dust nuisance be accepted and the report be received.  

CARRIED 

RESOLUTION  2017/97  

Moved: Cr James Leslie 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

That Council proceed to apply a maintenance dressing of Rotten Rock and clay mix on the Ben 
Ohau Road as far as the Cheese Factory.  
 
In Favour: Mayor Graham Smith, Crs James Leslie, Russell Armstrong, Stuart Barwood, Chris 

Clarke and Paul Hannagan 

Against: Cr Anne Munro 

CARRIED 

 
Mr McKenzie spoke to the report. He added if exception was made laying Rotten Rock Material 
would be the recommended choice of action.  
 
Cr Clarke asked what implications would occur if Council diverted from the policy. 
 
Mr McKenzie replied Ben Oahu Road was a rural road and similar to further rural areas in the District. 
He noted there had been a significant level of development on Ben Ohau Road however diverting 
from the policy could result in other rural residents raising issues. 
 
The Mayor reported Ben Ohau Road had experience a large increase in traffic volumes. He suggested 
the road maintenance schedule be brought forward and adding a clay mix to distribution would 
alleviate the dust problem. He noted several Fairlie Rural Roads had received treatment for dust 
nuisance. He added the road was close to Town with the potential for 13 homes being constructed.  
 
Cr Leslie said a policy had been set regarding certain circumstances, however those circumstances 
had changed. He added there was now a Skyscape business and Cheese Factory down Ben Ohau 
Road acting as a tourist destination.  
 
Cr Munro felt disappointed only one resident attended the meeting held with the Mayor to discuss 
the dust nuisance problem. She said rural roads during summer did experience high traffic volumes 
and Ben Ohau Road was no different than other rural roads. She noted Rotten Rock would be muddy 
and leave vehicles messy in the winter. She expressed concern that this may create a precedence.  
 
Cr Barwood reported Ben Ohau Road had been developed as a track for a Forestry operation. He 
asked why developers selling sections were not asked to contribute, he added it was disappointing 
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current residence were not prepared to contribute. He said other residents in the District would 
contribute to upgrades of rural roads if the opportunity arose.  
 
Mr Barnett replied contributions could not be sought retrospectively. He noted no contribution had 
been received from the Developer on Ben Ohau Road. He added contributions had been paid by a 
Developer of Manuka Terrace and this contribution had provided sealing of a section of Manuka 
Terrace. 
 
Cr Clarke said reasoning for diverting from the policy must be clear. He felt Council could not change 
circumstances to fit policies or procedures and further residents on other rural properties were 
worse off. 
 
Cr Armstrong highlighted the growth of Twizel and added no other dust nuisance complaints had 
been received from other rural roads. 
 
Mr McKenzie confirmed if the maintenance was brought forward a subsidy could be applied for. He 
added funding for sealing would not be available. He said there had been a large increase of 
homestays, Alps2Ocean accommodation providers and Lodges on rural roads.  
 
Cr Clarke asked if tourists using rural roads would qualify Council for MBE funding. Cr Barwood 
agreed and suggested applying to NZTA for dust nuisance relief. 
 
The Mayor asked for works to take place immediately.   
 

 

8.6 TOURISM PROMOTION RATE 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For Council to confirm whether it seeks to continue its role in tourism promotion of the Mackenzie 
District. 

RESOLUTION  2017/98  

Moved: Cr Russell Armstrong 
Seconded: Cr Paul Hannagan 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

RESOLUTION  2017/99  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr James Leslie 

CARRIED 

 

Miss Hill spoke to the report. 
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8.7 SIGNIFICANT FORECASTING ASSUMPTIONS 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to seek that Council adopt the significant forecasting assumptions 
for the purpose of developing the draft 2018-1028 LTP and associated documents. 

 

RESOLUTION  2017/100  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

RESOLUTION  2017/101  

Moved: Cr Anne Munro 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

2. That the attached significant forecasting assumptions be adopted for the 2018-28 Long 
Term Plan process. 

CARRIED 

 

Ms Morrison spoke to the report.  
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8.8 COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND COMMUNITY BOARDS MEETING SCHEDULE 2018 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

For Council to adopt the attached meeting schedule for 2018.  

 

RESOLUTION  2017/102  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the report be received. 

CARRIED 

RESOLUTION  2017/103  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

2. That Council adopt the Council, Committee and Community Boards meeting schedule for 
2018.  

CARRIED 

 

  

8 COMMUNITY BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS 

9.1 MINUTES OF TWIZEL COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 18 SEPTEMBER 2017 

MOTION    

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Twizel Community Board Meeting held on Monday 18 September 
2017 be received and the recommendations therein be adopted. 

 

9.2 MINUTES OF TEKAPO COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 20 SEPTEMBER 2017 

RESOLUTION  2017/104  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Tekapo Community Board Meeting held on Wednesday 20 
September 2017 be received and the recommendations therein be adopted. 

CARRIED 
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9.3 MINUTES OF FAIRLIE COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING - 21 SEPTEMBER 2017 

RESOLUTION  2017/105  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Fairlie Community Board Meeting held on Thursday 21 September 
2017 be received and the recommendations therein be adopted. 

CARRIED 

 

9 RECEIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

10.1 MINUTES OF FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 3 OCTOBER 2017 

RESOLUTION  2017/106  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 3 October 2017 be 
received.  

CARRIED 

 

10.2 MINUTES OF ASSETS AND SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING - 3 OCTOBER 2017 

RESOLUTION  2017/107  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the Minutes of the Assets and Services Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 3 
October 2017 be received. 

CARRIED 

 

10.3 MINUTES OF PLANNING AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING - 3 OCTOBER 2017 

RESOLUTION  2017/108  

Moved: Cr Chris Clarke 
Seconded: Cr Anne Munro 

1. That the Minutes of the Planning and Regulations Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 3 
October 2017 be received. 

CARRIED 
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10 CONFIRM COUNCIL MINUTES 

11.1 MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING - 19 SEPTEMBER 2017 

RESOLUTION  2017/109  

Moved: Cr James Leslie 
Seconded: Cr Stuart Barwood 

1. That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on Tuesday 19 September 2017 be adopted 
as a true and accurate record of the meeting, including such parts taken with the public 
excluded.  

CARRIED 

 

  

11 ADJOURNMENTS   

The meeting adjourned at 11:12am and reconvened at 11:38am for morning tea. 

 

12 PUBLIC EXCLUDED  

RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC 

RESOLUTION  2017/110  

Moved: Cr James Leslie 
Seconded: Cr Chris Clarke 

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting. 

The general subject matter of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason 
for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48 of 
the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution 
are as follows: 

General subject of each matter 
to be considered 

Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each 
matter 

Ground(s) under section 48 for 
the passing of this resolution 

13.1 - Minutes of Public 
Excluded Council Meeting - 19 
September 2017 

s7(2)(b)(ii) - the withholding of 
the information is necessary to 
protect information where the 
making available of the 
information would be likely 
unreasonably to prejudice the 
commercial position of the 
person who supplied or who is 
the subject of the information 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
enable Council to carry out, 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 
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without prejudice or 
disadvantage, commercial 
activities 

13.2 - Proposal to Rationalise 
Land Holdings 

s7(2)(b)(ii) - the withholding of 
the information is necessary to 
protect information where the 
making available of the 
information would be likely 
unreasonably to prejudice the 
commercial position of the 
person who supplied or who is 
the subject of the information 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
enable Council to carry out, 
without prejudice or 
disadvantage, commercial 
activities 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 

13.3 - Twizel Property 
Development 

s7(2)(a) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to 
protect the privacy of natural 
persons, including that of 
deceased natural persons 

s7(2)(b)(ii) - the withholding of 
the information is necessary to 
protect information where the 
making available of the 
information would be likely 
unreasonably to prejudice the 
commercial position of the 
person who supplied or who is 
the subject of the information 

s48(1)(a)(i) - the public conduct 
of the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting 
would be likely to result in the 
disclosure of information for 
which good reason for 
withholding would exist under 
section 6 or section 7 

CARRIED 

RESOLUTION  2017/111  

Moved: Cr James Leslie 
Seconded: Cr Russell Armstrong 

That Council moves out of Closed Council into Open Council. 

CARRIED 

 

The Meeting closed at 1:13pm. 

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 12 
December 2017. 

 

................................................... 

CHAIRPERSON  



Ordinary Council Meeting Minutes 31 October 2017 

Page 257 
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12 ADJOURNMENTS 

13 PUBLIC EXCLUDED    

Nil  
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